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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
EIEFEFEU}?/

1 2022.04.228
HKCAAVQ participates at China Study Abroad Forum 2022
&5 2 HE B B 25w iE 2022

2 2022.05.13

HKCAAVQ speaks at Forum of “Quality Assurance for Pandemic-Disrupted
Higher Education: An Accreditation Perspective”

FERSEAZTRT R RWE

3 2022.06.09
HKCAAVQ accredits the Diploma of Applied Education at QF Level 3
TERANERAHENBREREEFERBE=R

4 2022.06.23

HKCAAVQ provides consultancy service to Guangdong Academic Credit Bank
on developing a quality assurance mechanism under the Guangdong Lifelong
Education Qualifications Framework

TFERARRREHFEEELRERERR (BEVERREHS) RUBERERSE

5 2022.07.06 -2022.12.31 €%

HKCAAVQ co-launches the QR Promotion Campaign 2022 with the Qualifications
Framework Secretariat

TEREEERBNE R HERE S MR8 2022

6 2022.07.21&
HKCAAVQ participates in KMB Academy Establishment Ceremony

FERLFENBRER S
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Pilot Project on the Development
of Applied Degree Programmes

Commissioned by the Education Bureau of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (HKSAR) Government
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Student Liaison Meetings
BAEBKNESR

HKCAAVQ speaks at Rotary Club of Kai Tak’s Dinner Meeting
TEREERERRLREER
@&

QFQR4U Awarding Ceremony
QFQR4U - B & E =T 8 2022 fE2E 8138

&
HKCAAVQ participates in the Life Planning Education Conference 2022

TERSELERBB BT 2022
&

HKCAAVQ Press Conference on Pilot Project on the Development of Applied
Degree Programme

AERERBURELSTE | RERGE

HKCAAVQ speaks at Macao Polytechnic University’s 14th Higher Education
International Conference

AERZERMEIAZ [F+TNESSHEER2MHHE ]

HKCAAVQ attends Seminar at the Education University
TERHEBERBEAYRBE I ZRIIEE

HKCAAVQ speaks at HKU SPACE International Conference
TERSHEEBABEXECERERER
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Hon Rock CHEN Chung-nin, SBS, JP
PRiffE=EE, SBS, JP

Council Chairman
HERERE

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23




D

Highlights of the Year Chairman’s Message Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat Strategic Plan Operational Review Financial Report Appendix
FEEE ETRFE BHRERE RTER &R RS RS TS BI TSRS iiE>4

CHAIRMAN’'S MESSAGE £ERF=

When looking back into the past months, what | find most meaningful is that our society has been gradually
restoring its normalcy and the economy is getting back on track to the pre-pandemic level. It is undeniable
that the global socio-economic environment was hard hit by the pandemic since 2020, but as time goes
by and the impacts of the pandemic recedes, our society is now fully geared up again for new challenges
and opportunities ahead. During the pandemic, HKCAAVQ made significant efforts to adapt to the rapidly
changing situations in order to sustain quality services, and to avoid interruption to HKCAAVQ's operation.
Despite the challenges encountered, HKCAAVQ has always stay focused in becoming a globally-recognised
and leading quality assurance body in education and training.

While talent shortage has aroused as a global issue, with HKCAAVQ's statutory role to underpin the quality
assurance of all programmes and qualifications under Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (HKQF), we
are mindful of playing an active role to support various government initiatives which are relevant to the
development of qualifications and education and training in Hong Kong.

On local front, HKCAAVQ has continued to work closely with our stakeholders. In November 2022, a press
conference was held to draw spotlight to the Council's work on the Pilot Project on the Development
of Applied Degree Programmes (the Pilot Project). HKCAAVQ was commissioned by Education Bureau
(EDB) earlier to conduct research and development work on the Pilot Project. Subsequently, the first
batch of a total of four programmes under the Pilot Project have been launched in the 2022/23 academic
year, covering four disciplines: Nursing, Testing and Certification, Horticulture, Arboriculture and
Landscape Management, and Gerontology. In January 2023, a report on the development of applied degree
programmes was submitted to EDB, outlining the positioning and characteristic features of applied degree
and implementation details.

HKCAAVQ was also appointed by EDB to conduct a review on Sub-Degree Education (the Study), which
aimed to examine the sub-degree education landscape and utilise the research findings to better
differentiate the positioning of Associate Degree (AD) and Higher Diploma (HD). By reviewing similar
education systems in other countries and arranging dialogue sessions with local stakeholders, HKCAAVQ
submitted a final report and a set of draft of the revised Common Descriptors to EDB. After numerous
stakeholder consultation sessions, the revised Common Descriptors had been announced by the EDB.

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE =ERF=E

Cross-boundary work has also been another highlight of HKCAAVQ's work during the reporting year. With
Greater Bay Area (GBA) as one of the major themes for development recently, HKCAAVQ has participated in
various quality assurance-related consultancy projects in the Greater Bay Area (GBA) including rendering
assistance in the development of the quality assurance (QA) mechanism and processes in Guangdong.
We have also been working closely with the Education and Youth Development Bureau of Macao SAR
Government and higher education institutions in Macao in providing quality assurance services in
supporting their educational development. In addition, HKCAAVQ has also offered school review services
to schools in Mainland China operating Hong Kong secondary school curriculum in facilitating students to
take HKDSE examination and the schools to become authorised examination centres.

HKCAAVQ has spared relentless effort in attaining international recognitions and expanding its influence
at global level. HKCAAVQ being the first quality assurance agency in the Asia-Pacific region and outside
the European Higher Education Area (EHEA) and Europe obtaining “substantial compliance” with ESG
(2015 version) in the external review conducted by the European Association for Quality Assurance in
Higher Education (ENQA) in 2021 has been an encouraging testimony to the leading role of HKCAAVQ in the
international QA community and acknowledgement of the contributions and quality excellence of HKCAAVQ.
With over 30 years of experience in the quality assurance sector and having developed sophisticated
accreditation and assessment mechanisms, HKCAAVQ will strive to look further, reach higher and achieve
more.

As a key enabler of the city’s quality assurance of qualifications, HKCAAVQ has gone through another
fruitful year. In addition to the provision of accreditation, assessment and consultancy services, large-
scale events, outbound visits and cross-boundary cooperation have once again become possible,
allowing more room for HKCAAVQ to carry out its scope of services and create impacts. Looking into the
future, HKCAAVQ stays fully committed to support government initiatives in qualifications and education
development, recognition and further internationalisation. The existing Qualifications Framework (HKQF)
and Qualifications Register (HKQR) will still have a great potential to develop in line with the local, regional
and international development. HKCAAVQ will use its best endeavour to continuously upkeep and enhance
quality of all qualifications underpinning the HKQF.

Hon Rock CHEN Chung-nin, SBS, JP
Chairman
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When | joined the HKCAAVQ family in 2018, | had a dream of visions and missions forming a first Strategic
Plan. Amid the challenges in the Hong Kong society during the past few years, thanks to all the concerted
efforts of every one at HKCAAVQ and the endless support from our Council and stakeholders, HKCAAVQ
successfully sailed through the wind and waves, and opening up new opportunities. In five years’ time,
HKCAAVQ is glad to reap what we sowed. Having established a strong financial position, HKCAAVQ is now
capable in ensuring long-term sustainable development and quality services, simultaneously rewarding
our stakeholders and the community.

HKCAAVQ has aspired to be a leading quality assurance body at regional level. We strive to become a
globally-recognised quality assurance agency, with a view to enhance the quality of standards and level of
the assurance work in Hong Kong and beyond.

To date, HKCAAVQ has obtained recognitions from International Network for Quality Assurance Agencies in
Higher Education (INQAAHE) and European Association for Quality Assurance in Higher Education (ENQA),
which highly affirmed HKCAAVQ's contributions to the quality assurance for the higher education sector.
HKCAAVQ is honoured to be the first quality assurance agency in the Asia Pacific region of receiving dual
recognitions.

As a globally-recognised quality assurance agency, in addition to quality assurance work, it is essential
for HKCAAVQ to build a corporate spirit that involves proactivity and dedication to serve the community.
In recent years, HKCAAVQ has taken an active role in providing assistance for institutions and operators,
for instance, enhancing facilitation phase to provide operators with necessary support before they
submit formal applications for accreditation, and providing operators with observations on programme
development and quality enhancement. Besides, HKCAAVQ devotes much effort to maintain our connection
with our stakeholders, and to promote the Council’'s services via different initiatives. These included a
series of operators’ sharing sessions and seminars, “QFQR4U - QR Promotion Campaign 2022", Specialist
Appointment Ceremony and Student Liaison Meetings. By strong engagement in communication platforms
with stakeholders, HKCAAVQ strives to excel in providing excellent services and serving the community.

HKCAAVQ has also developed strategic partnerships with the government, local institutions and
programme operators, as well as collaborative partners in Macau, Greater Bay Area and other countries,
as a way to seize every valuable opportunity in driving quality assurance work at local and regional level.

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23
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The services provided by HKCAAVQ are not confined to accreditation services under the HKQF. With the
approval of the Secretary for Education, the scope of work of the Council now also covers local and non-
local consultancy services.

In line with the statutory functions vested with the HKCAAVQ Ordinance, the Council, in recent years,
has actively assisted the Government in policy development. As commissioned by the Government,
HKCAAVQ took up the responsibility of conducting a series of consultancy and research projects, including
study on non-local medical qualifications, review of sub-degree education and study on local veterinary
qualifications, as well as collaborating with the Education and Youth Development Bureau of Macao for the
quality assurance services of three universities in Macau.

Innovation is the key to development. As a gatekeeper of quality assurance, HKCAAVQ is unswervingly
committed to refining our services. In order to improve our service quality and further streamline the
assessment process, HKCAAVQ has been working actively on planning and implementing the digitalisation
roadmap. This has achieved phased results with the establishment of a Digital Credential Hub at the pilot
phase. Initial success has also been made in Al, big data and Robotic Automation tests with a view to
enhance the productivity of our services and at the same time provide intelligence report to the sectors and
the public through annual and thematic reports.

Looking into the future, HKCAAVQ will continue to endeavor to become a world-class leading quality
assurance agency, and will support Hong Kong in strengthening the internationalisation and regional

education hub initiatives.

As a humble servant of Christ, | believe everything is grace and glory goes to the Lord!

Mr CHOW Hing-pong, Albert
Executive Director

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23
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The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ), formerly
known as the Hong Kong Council for Academic Accreditation (HKCAA), was established in 1990 as an
independent statutory body to provide authoritative advice on academic standards of degree programmes
in higher education institutions in Hong Kong.

In 2007, the Council was reconstituted under the HKCAAVQ Ordinance (Chapter 1150). The HKCAAVQ
took on responsibility for the vocational sector and statutory roles as the Accreditation Authority and
Qualifications Register Authority under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework under the Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Chapter 592).

The HKCAAVQ provides quality assurance and assessment services to education and training institutions,
course providers and the general public. In addition to its statutory roles, the HKCAAVQ also provides
advisory and consultancy services in education qualifications and standards to government bureaux and
other organisations in Hong Kong and the Asia-Pacific region.

HKCAAVQ is governed by a Council comprising local and non-local members. The Council of HKCAAVQ is
established under section 3 of the HKCAAVQ Ordinance. Its Chairman, Vice-chairman and members are
appointed by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in their personal capacity
under the HKCAAVQ Ordinance.

The composition of the Council’'s membership includes members who have quality assurance or
accreditation related expertise or experience and good standing in the field of education and training or
in any industry. The Permanent Secretary for Education or his representative and HKCAAVQ's Executive
Director are ex-officio members.

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23
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The functions of the Council are defined in the HKCAAVQ Ordinance (Cap 1150):

1. Conduct accreditation tests in relation to institutions, assessment agencies, learning
programmes, qualifications and individuals;

2. Promote the methods and practices of conducting accreditation tests;
3. Disseminate information on standards of learning programmes;

4. Establish relationships with accreditation QA bodies; education and training authorities
outside Hong Kong;

5. Conduct seminars, conferences and other forms of instructional/promotional activities;

6. Conduct or commission research into the maintenance or monitoring of standards of
education and of training; and

7.  Perform functions outside Hong Kong with the prior approval of the Secretary for
Education.

The Council meets three times a year, i.e. in January, May and September. Subject to section 8(1)
of the HKCAAVQ Ordinance, its work is supported by five standing committees:

Qualifications and Accreditation Committee (QAC)
Finance Committee (FC)

Personnel and Administration Committee (PAC)
Business Development Committee (BDC)

Risk Management Committee (RMC)

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23
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1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023
202254 A1 BE202343A31H

Chairman Deputy Secretary for Education (Representing Professor Zita Fahmi Dr Michael Fung Jin-lung Professor Sheelagh Matear
E the Permanent Secretary for Education)
. HERBRER (HEREERERAR)
Hon Ro;kz(lhen Chung-nin, SBS, JP Mr Esmond Lee Chung-sin, JP
BRfRfEER , SBS, JP ARk P

Vice-chairman Executive Director of HKCAAVQ Professor Phys Rowland-Jones Professor Bjgrn Stensaker
EES ERARSE

Ms Margaret Cheng Wai-ching, JP Mr Albert Chow Hing-pong

Pwat, P REFREE
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To inform our stakeholders about the strategic development of HKCAAVQ, we are pleased to share with you
the key implementations of Strategic Plan 2019-2023.

The Education Bureau (EDB), the Qualifications Framework Secretariat (QFS), and HKCAAVQ have been
co-operating with the relevant authorities in the Guangdong Province to foster collaboration between the
two places on the development of QF, since the signing of the Letter of Intent on QF Co-operation between
EDB of the HKSAR Government and the Ministry of Education of Guangdong Province in 2019. HKCAAVQ
has been engaged in providing consultancy service relating to the development of a quality assurance
mechanism under the Guangdong’s Qualifications Framework (GDQF), as well as working closely with
the Guangdong Academic Credit Bank. While the development work of the GDQF is close to completion,
HKCAAVQ will continue to contribute to this meaningful initiative at regional level.

In 2022, the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority (HKEAA) announced that it would accept
qualified mainland schools for Hong Kong Children to participate in the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary
Education (HKDSE) Examination and be recognised as a “Participating School”. After that, HKCAAVQ has
commenced offering School Review Services to those school and the first School Review was successfully
completed in October 2022.

Another key service of HKCAAVAQ is the collaboration with Macao’s higher education sector. In line with our
close partnership with the Education and Youth Affairs Bureau of the Macao SAR Government, HKCAAVQ,
with prior approval of the Secretary for Education, has been working closely with higher education
institutions in Macao in conducting programme reviews under the revised Higher Education Law of the
Macao Special Administrative Region. HKCAAVQ was also invited to provide training for Macao’s institutions
on various aspects of quality assurance and enhancement. We will continue to collaborate with the
authority and institutions in Macao in rolling out quality assurance and enhancement initiatives.

Commissioned by EDB, HKCAAVQ conducted a review on sub-degree education aiming at a better
differentiation on the positioning of Associate Degree (AD) and Higher Diploma (HD). The Study also
proposed enhancement measures for HD as a pathway for employment at the para-professional level and
articulation to study. A final report and a set of proposed revised Common Descriptors were submitted to
EDB by HKCAAVQ. After a stakeholder consultation session, the revised Common Descriptors have been
approved to take effect.
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EDB launched the Pilot Project on the Development of Applied Degree Programmes (the Pilot Project)
in 2021. HKCAAVQ was commissioned by EDB in working closely with four local institutions selected
by EDB to develop the applied degree programmes, including Bachelor of Nursing (Honours) of Caritas
Institute of Higher Education, Bachelor of Applied Science with Honours in Integrated Testing, Inspection
and Certification of Hong Kong Metropolitan University, Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Horticulture,
Arboriculture and Landscape Management of Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong
of the Vocational Training Council, and Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Applied Gerontology of Tung
Wah College. Upon completion of the quality assurance processes, the above four programmes were
successfully launched in the 2022/23 academic year. The second round is scheduled to take place in the
second half of 2023.

HKCAAVQ was appointed by the HKSAR Government in November 2021 to conduct a study to examine non-
local medical qualifications against the standards of local medical qualifications for special registration
to practise in Hong Kong. As of the end of 2022, 75 non-local medical qualifications, including mainland
qualifications, have been recommended by Special Registration Committee established under the Medical
Council of Hong Kong (MCHK) for recognition. Substantive progress to the project has been made during
the period.

Digitalisation is one of the important initiatives of HKCAAVQ. Having channelled substantial resources
and efforts, good progresses have been observed along our digitalisation journey. Up till now, we are
approaching to the close of finalising pilot stage of the development of the Digital Credential Hub. The
initial test on the Robotic Process Automation (RPA), which aims to streamline and enhance our services, is
expected to complete very soon.

As the next Strategic Plan will take effect from 2024, fruitful results achieved over the years will certainly
pave way for a brighter future for HKCAAVQ.

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23

SHE RN 2021 FHREMN [ERRURELEHE ] TERRER
Rt AURERKENRRETRAFERAERIE - RIZEE : B
EH FERH#IEE(KE)BLRE  BEMEREFES MR E
REBEAESL  BEJIRRELESSHEHREREZHELE
BEE(RE)EELRIE BRRELREREFE(KE)EEL
ARiE o DRI RBE BREZFR - R 2022/23 82 F i - 5
— % [RRBMREL G| SN 2028 F THFHE ©

FERN2021F N ARBFERE - UAAHESEFENIRE - 5K
KRB RIE M ERER RN IR B EET - BE2022F
R EEBEBZEGETHFIEMEZE@ERAR 2R E
SBEEXATSE  EPRE —LHPERNMRRRBEEE
HiR - MBS ERUS RIFER -

ABRUENNEY  ERRBLLAT —AEBRE - EBEN
EEERNE ) - FEROBE(HLERNERIHER - £5 -
RUBBEETOEENRERDEARE < AF - FRRHAE
HRBEATREDILEARREERBRES - BRRUHE
BRAGF -

PR R N AR ER SN 2024 FRFA - BEFRIERISH
LIEKR - BERRARRRERNEEES °



Appe

OPERATIONAL

REVIEW

fE#k &




21

Highlights of the Year Chairman’s Message Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat Strategic Plan Operational Review Financial Report Appendix
FEEE ETRFE wEHERE RTER &R REEHRAE TS BI TSRS {iE>4

HKCAAVQ accredits academic and vocational and professional education and training (VPET) programmes
by applying its accreditation standards to ensure that the learning programmes and their operators meet
the minimum quality standards for recognition under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (HKQF) and
entry into the Qualifications Register (QR).

Accredited programmes are listed in the QR, a publicly available website that lists all of the quality assured
programmes and qualifications in Hong Kong, including those offered by the self-accrediting, publicly-
funded universities. Summary reports or full reports of accreditation outcomes are published on the
HKCAAVQ website to help learners make an informed decision on their studies.

Major Developments
Robotic Process Automation project

HKCAAVQ has devised plans to enhance our services by embracing new technologies through a number
of digital initiatives. We are exploring the feasibility of employing the latest technology to establish a
secure and robust electronic platform for storing and accessing authenticated credentials of graduates of
programmes accredited by HKCAAVQ.

We are looking into ways to further improve our internal quality management system (QMS) by
incorporating appropriate computational techniques to optimise our processes, and adopting automation
and intelligent tools to enhance the efficiency of the workflow and the quality of decision-making.
Innovation is one of the core values of HKCAAVQ and we always actively pursue new ideas and practices to
enhance our operations. These digital initiatives are our endeavours in this direction in the years to come.
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HKCAAVQ provides an extensive range of academic accreditation services, including accreditation of
programmes offered by post-secondary institutions at postgraduate, degree and sub-degree levels, and
non-local learning programmes (NLP) registered or exempted from registration under the Non-local
Higher and Professional Courses (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493). HKCAAVQ also conducts Institutional
Review (IR) for institutions seeking registration under the Post-Secondary Colleges Ordinance (Cap 320) for
degree-awarding status, and Institutional Review for institutions seeking Private University Status.

Key Figures

Comparison of Breakdown of Academic Programmes Accredited or Re-accredited in 2021/22 and 2022/23

Local Programme Accreditation
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Local Programme Re-accreditation KR EER 2021/22 2022/23
Doctoral Degree (L7) B2 0 0
Master’s Degree (Lé) EL24 5 4
Bachelor’s Degree (L5) BB 4 18
Professional Diploma (L5) BEUR 0 2
Associate Degree/Higher Diploma (L4) B2+ SR 4 5
Professional Certificate (L4) EEEE 0 0
Professional Diploma (L4) HEUR 0 0
Diploma (L3) R 2 3
Certificate (L3) HE 0 0
Non-Local Programme Accreditation AR RIZFLE 2021/22 2022/23
Advanced Master (L6) [SEZ e 0 0
Bachelor’'s Degree (L5) 2484 3 13
Diploma (L3) SR 0 1
Non-Local Programme Re-accreditation ~ JEARH:RIZEE 2021/22 2022/23
Master’s Degree (L6) T=n=={1vs 0 0
Bachelor’'s Degree (L5) ===V 12 18
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Comparison of Breakdown of Initial Evaluation Exercises in 2021/22 and 2022/23
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Comparison of Number of Programme Area Accreditation Exercises and Number of Programme Areas 2021/22 % 2022/23 FEERSHEFTEHF
in 2021/22 and 2022/23
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In 2022/23, HKCAAVQ conducted Learning Programme Accreditation (LPA) exercises for a total of 42 local
programmes and 14 non-local programmes, and Learning Programme Re-accreditation (Re-LPA) exercises
for 32 local programmes and 18 non-local programmes. There were also seven Initial Evaluation (IE)
exercises for six local institutions and one partnership between a local and a non-local Operator.

When compared with the previous year, the overall number of programmes accredited rose significantly.
For programme accreditation, there is a notable rise in the number of local programmes accredited at
QF Levels 1-3 and non-local programmes accredited at QF Level 5. For programme re-accreditation, the
number of local programmes re-accredited, particularly those at QF Level 5, increased remarkably, while
the number of non-local programmes re-accredited demonstrated a milder rise.

In 2022/23, a Periodic Institutional Review (PIR) exercise was conducted, covering one programme area for
one single institution.
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Accreditation with Government Units

During the reporting period, three units of the HKSAR Government, including the Immigration Service
Institute of Training and Development, Fire and Ambulance Services Academy, and Hong Kong Correctional
Services Academy, underwent accreditation for their respective programmes at QF Level 4.

Accreditation of Online Learning Programme

In response to the increasing demands for offering learners with higher level of flexibility in the delivery of
learning programmes, an in-house online programme, namely Certificate in Banking for Customer Service
Officers - Online Learning Programme, at QF Level 3 offered by the Learning and Talent Development
Centre, Human Resources Department, Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited was accredited in November
2022. With its online nature, this programme was delivered through an in-house digital learning platform
with the incorporation of a variety of interactive learning and assessment activities, meeting the business
development needs of the Operator.

Accreditation of Assessment Agency for Recognition of Professional
Qualifications (AAPQ)

In August 2022, The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers (HKIB) underwent an accreditation exercise to include
six new Fintech related qualifications to its scope of accreditation status as AAPQ. Subsequently, HKIB has
been appointed by the Secretary for Education as the AAPQ of the six new qualifications until 31 July 2025.
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Accreditation of Applied Learning (ApL) Programmes and Learning
Programmes Offered by Secondary Schools

Continuing to promote VPET as a preferred choice for young people, HKCAAVQ has been working
closely with Operators of ApL programmes and the secondary school sector in quality assuring learning
programmes offered to secondary school students.

During the reporting period, two accreditation exercises were completed for five ApL programmes,
covering three cohorts from 2023/25 to 2025/27. A total of five programmes offered by secondary schools
were also accredited during the same period for providing students with basic vocational skills to enter the
job market after graduation.

Accreditation of Specification of Competency Standards (SCS)-based
Programmes

A total of 52 SCS-based programmes were accredited by HKCAAVQ during the reporting period. One of
the accredited SCS-based programmes is the Professional Diploma in Advanced Property Management
(QF Level 5) offered by the Hong Kong College of Technology (HKCT) which aims to equip learners with
necessary skills to take up higher supervisory positions, such as Senior Property Officer or above. This
programme was the first accredited SCS-based programme at QF Level 5 in the Property Management
Industry.
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Moderation of SCS and SCS-based Training Packages

To support the continuous development of the HKQF, HKCAAVQ conducts moderation of SCS and SCS-
based Training Packages at the request of the Education Bureau (EDB). During the reporting period,
HKCAAVQ moderated revamped units of competency (UoCs) in the SCS for the Insurance Industry, the
Import & Export Industry, and the Printing & Publishing Industry respectively. Additionally, a total of five
sets of SCS-based Training Packages were moderated, including two sets for the Catering Industry, two
sets for the Beauty Industry, and one set for the Banking Industry.

Accreditation of Vocational Qualifications Pathway (VQP) Programmes

Being designed to meet the competencies requirements of specific job roles defined by the Industry
Training Advisory Committee (ITAC), VQP programmes, as of March 2023, have been developed in five
industries, namely the Banking Industry, Elderly Care Service Industry, Insurance Industry, Printing &
Publishing Industry, and Property Management Industry. During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ accredited
a total of 10 VAP programmes for three industries. With the licensing requirements set out for various
job positions in certain industries such as the Elderly Care Service Industry and Property Management
Industry, an increasing number of Operators have developed VQP programmes to support manpower
training in these industries.

Periodic Institutional Review (PIR)

In November 2022, the Employees Retraining Board (ERB) underwent its first Periodic Institutional Review
(PIR) in the programme area of Catering, Food and Beverage Services. The review covered 349 current
programmes ranging from QF Level 1 to 3 on the Qualifications Register.

Following the completion of the PIR, the ERB has been granted approval to continue developing and
operating learning programmes within the approved programme area up to QF Level 3 without the need
for seeking LPA or re-LPA by HKCAAVQ, contributing to continuous development of more diversified
programmes and cultivation of talents in the Catering, Food and Beverage Services industry.
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Major Developments

During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ has been working closely with different stakeholders in the VPET
sector and playing an increasingly important role in supporting different initiatives for enhancing the
capability of the workforce.

Accreditation and Benchmarking Study of Diploma of Applied Education (DAE)

Facing the rapid socio-economic changes and competition of skilled talents, EDB launched the Diploma
of Applied Education (DAE) for implementation starting from the 2023/24 academic year. To safeguard the
quality of the programme, in addition to completion of learning programme accreditation (LPA) at QF Level
3, HKCAAVQ also conducted a benchmarking study for DAE and confirmed that the exit standard of the DAE
qualification is comparable to the attainment of Level 2 standard in five subjects in the Hong Kong Diploma
of Secondary Education (HKDSE) Examination.

Future Initiatives

In the coming year, HKCAAVQ will continue to work with different stakeholders in supporting the
development of the HKQF and the VPET sector.

Exploration of Customised Approaches to Accrediting Micro-credentials

With an increasing demand for more focused, flexible and shorter learning programmes, the development
and offering of micro-credentials have been observed as a trend in education and training across the globe
in recent years. To support such development in Hong Kong, HKCAAVQ will continue to proactively explore
the feasibility of formulating customised approaches to accrediting micro-credentials recognised under QF.
Stakeholders will be invited to participate in the development process so as to ensure that the needs and
expectations of stakeholders can always be met.
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In addition to accreditation under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (HKQF), HKCAAVQ provides a
range of assessment services and consultancy services as authorised under any other enactment and/or
by the Secretary for Education. For examples:

(a)

(d)

The provision of professional advice to the Registrar of Non-local Higher and Professional Education
Courses (the Registrar) in the assessment of non-local courses registered or exempted from
registration under the Non-local Higher and Professional Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap.
493). The approval of registration or exemption from registration of a non-local course under Cap. 493
rests with the Registrar.

The provision of expert advice to the Labour and Welfare Bureau (LWB), the final approval authority
of the Continuing Education Fund (CEF), on the courses to be included in the register of reimbursable
courses under the CEF.

Performing the role of the sole assessment authority for the Continuing Professional Development
(CPD) Programme under the Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance Scheme (IIQAS) of the
Insurance Authority.

The provision of quality assurance service of the Applied Learning (ApL) courses as commissioned by
the EDB.

Assessment of Non-local Courses

This year, HKCAAVQ assessed 30 new applications, 362 annual returns and 177 applications for changes to
registered courses. Courses leading to Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees awards continue to be the majority
in the new applications.
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Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment in
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Assessment of Continuing Education Fund (CEF) Courses

Commissioned by the Labour and Welfare Bureau (LWB), HKCAAVQ is responsible for advising the LWB on
the registration of courses to be included in the list of reimbursable courses under the CEF, and monitoring
the quality of courses after registration, as and when required by LWB.

In 2022/23, HKCAAVQ assessed 2,415 applications, including 674 applications for course registration,
1,183 applications for course renewal and 558 applications for course amendment. Moreover, HKCAAVQ
conducted 85 surprise audit visits and 10 scheduled visits. There was a significant increase in the number
of applications for course registration and course renewal when compared with the previous year.

Comparison of applications for CEF course registration, renewal and amendment in
2021/22 and 2022/23

Course Registration Course Renewal
HRERE REERE

437 674 196 1,183

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23
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Assessment of Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Programmes
During the reporting period, 182 new assessment applications, 389 annual re-assessment applications and
129 change applications for Type 1 Qualified CPD Activities for Licensed Insurance Intermediaries (CPD
Activities) were processed. Type 1 Qualified CPD Activities encompass two categories:

(1) Structured Activities involving real-time and face-to-face instruction, and

(2)  E-learning Activities delivered via electronic platforms. For Structured Activities, providers may opt
for including virtual classroom as a teaching mode.

As of 31 March 2023, 89.2% of the approved Structured Type 1 CPD Activities adopted virtual classroom as

one of the delivery modes, while 80 E-learning Activities were offered by the providers.

In addition to Type 1 Qualified CPD Activities, QF-recognised learning programmes categorised under
the Insurance Industry can be recognised as Type 3 Qualified CPD Activities, while those QF-recognised
learning programmes belonging to other industries, subject to vetting by HKCAAVQ, can also be recognised
as Type 4 Qualified CPD Activities.

As of 31 March 2023, there were 19 Type 3 Qualified CPD Activities and one Type 4 Qualified CPD Activity.
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Types of assessment applications of qualified CPD activities for licensed insurance intermediaries
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Quality Assurance Services

HKCAAVQ continues to be commissioned by EDB to assure the quality of the delivery of ApL courses.
Quality assurance visits were conducted for 10 ApL courses for the 2022/24 cohort. Course providers’
self-evaluation reports for the 2021/23 cohort of three ApL courses were also reviewed by HKCAAVQ with
identification of good practices therein and offering of recommendations for their continuous improvement.
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HKCAAVQ offers qualifications assessment services for the general public, organisations, and government
bureaux/departments on qualifications awarded by granting bodies outside Hong Kong. We offer a
professional opinion on whether the totality of the educational qualifications (i.e. the integrated learning
outcomes of the highest qualification including those learning outcomes achieved through learning deemed
to have a substantial bearing on the qualification under assessment) of an individual meets the standard of
a particular level of qualification in Hong Kong.

Key Figures

Qualifications Assessment Cases by Source of Application in 2021/22 and 2022/23

FRRAARAL  TREBABNTBPUREI A E FEERE
BUMBEFERTY - FEHRRET A CRBE (D5
BEGNESLE LRETHRAEEYENEB Y GARER
W) - REEHEEATE ST AERSINRERUAEES -
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Source of Application FREERIR 2021/22 2022/23 Total

st
Civil Service Bureau NIEEEBR 107 88
Education Bureau HER 51 20 4|234 5l258
Individuals ERIAL 3,600 4,493 2021/22 2022/23
Other Organisations Hbhrg 476 657

*1 April 2022 - 31 March 2023
2022F 4 H1HZE2023F3 431 H
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Level of Major Qualifications held by Applicants in 2021/22 and 2022/23 2021/22E822022/23 FEHBANETEEEFRE
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Place of Award of the Major Qualifications held by Applicants in 2021/22 and 2022/23 2021/22822022/23 FERBANETEEBFEERIBE
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Place of Award of Major Qualifications assessed and considered as meeting the standard of comparable 2021/22822022/23 FEF A BERTEABBSEFE LB THEN

qualifications under HKQF in 2021/22 and 2022/23 * BFEKF *
/Place of Award of Major Qualifications 2021/22 Comparable rate 2022/23 Comparable rate \
FTEBFERIBE FEREHEEZAD L FEAEHBEZAED L
Australia BN 85.9% 95.2%
Canada mex 99.2% 100%
Mainland China L A3 99.7% 99.7%
New Zealand R 100% 100%
South Africa FAFE 100% 98.8%
Taiwan (China) HERE 98% 98.9%
UK HE 95.9% 95.8%
kUSA ESE 95% 94.4% j

*The qualifications assessment is neither an institutional nor a programme accreditation, and the result relates only to
the qualifications of the individual applicant being assessed.
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In the reporting period, HKCAAVQ conducted 5,258 qualifications assessments, an increase of 24.2% when
compared to the figure of 4,234 in the previous year.

Source of Applications

The number of applications mainly composes of “General Purpose” and “Teacher Registration Purpose”
applications from individuals as well as organisations such as international schools and learning centres
in Hong Kong. These two types of applications aim to facilitate applicants seeking further studies and
employment opportunities including local teaching positions in Hong Kong. The volume of applications
primarily hinges on the local employment market, the private school sector and learning centres
community in Hong Kong.

Level and Place of Award of Qualifications

The majority of qualifications assessed was Bachelor’'s Degrees. The numbers of all the qualifications,
especially postgraduate and undergraduate degrees, had increased when compared to last year's numbers;
and this could be attributed by the current economic recovery currently undertaking in Hong Kong.

The United Kingdom and Mainland China remained the two major places of awards for the qualifications
assessed by our services. The figure recorded for the awards from Mainland China followed an established
trend suggesting that graduates were returning to Hong Kong after their studies.

Enhanced Public Awareness of Qualifications Assessment Service
HKCAAVQ continued to reach out to the community to enhance public understanding of our principles
and processes in conducting qualifications assessment over the reporting period. Talks were held for

various stakeholders including career teachers, students and parents. More information is also now made
available for students regarding qualifications assessment through study pathway guidebooks, etc.
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Authentication of Degree Certificates of Qualifications

HKCAAVQ continued to work closely with awarding institutions to authenticate applicants’ qualifications.
Apart from awarding institutions, we continued to devote financial and manpower resources to engage
national resource centres to authenticate qualifications and hence fake qualifications were detected.
During the reporting period, we identified 22 cases of fake qualifications which were reported to the Hong
Kong Police for reference and necessary follow-up.

Reasons for Non-assessable Qualifications Assessment

Although the number of qualifications assessed and considered by our QA Service as meeting the
standard of comparable qualifications under HKQF is high, a significant volume of applications contained
qualifications that were not assessable by our QA Service. In the reporting period, a total of 655 applications
were deemed as non-assessable by our QA Service due to (a) the qualifications not being recognised in the
home countries/areas; (b) the qualifications were fake; (c) the applicants were not able to provide sufficient
information; and (d) the applicants voluntarily decided to withdraw their applications.

Major Developments

The QA i-Portal is the default web-platform for applicants to submit their applications and make payment
online as well as for our QA Service to provide an update on the progress of their applications. Applicants
tend to make use of the QA i-Portal to handle their applications thus allowing the QA Service to better
serve our applicants/stakeholders. The continual integration and improvements of the QA i-Portal and
HKCAAVQ's Quality Management System (QMS) have greatly enhanced our service effectiveness and
efficiency.

Future Initiatives

HKCAAVQ's Country/Area Profiles (CAPs) provide comprehensive information on the eight main countries/
areas with which qualifications assessments are primarily conducted, including Australia, Canada,
Mainland China, New Zealand, South Africa, Taiwan (China), the United Kingdom and the United States of
America. The CAPs have greatly enhanced the efficiency and effectiveness of our work in quality assurance;
and we will continue to update the CAPs as well as other assessment guidelines to ensure they provide the
most up-to-date and relevant information to both our assessors and stakeholders.

The QA Service is further looking into ways in leveraging technology to better serve our applicants,
including the dissemination of assessment results in a secure and speedier manner.
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HKCAAVQ, being designated under the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance HERACEMEBEERTEEN) (F592F) THE
(Cap. 592) as the QR Authority, has made efforts to develop and maintain the Qualifications Register
(QR) in support of the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (HKQF). Being the public face of the QF,

Strategic Plan Operational Review

KA RSB

TERE

Financial Report

s

Appendix

Fisk

EMEFES
MER BHBERLEEEELM UXHEERBER - BES

B EANEREERBORTNE - REFHEERERATOE

the QR is a centralised web-based register containing information on QF-recognised qualifications and B EERE - REREGREGH - BRESEEAM LEERR
learning programmes, and their associated operators. As a web-based tool for searching quality assured BHERER  ZPEERERERREEAR S EEEEECE
qualifications in the planning and pursuit of lifelong learning, the QR serves as a useful information source AYEH G EAEE
to help learners make informed choices on selecting suitable programmes and plan their progression
pathways.
. N -
Key Figures FEHF
Management of QR Records ERE AR EE 2021/22 2022/23
No. of Qualifications on QR (March figures) BERAM EMERER (ZA%T) 8,625 8,866
QR Hit Rate (Annual Growth) BREAMEER (FEREK) 4.85% 5.03%
No. of QR Batches Uploaded FENBEAMAEIRAS B 852 1,140
No. of Misleading HKQF Related Advertisement BREFEREREESEHA 17 54
Number of Qualifications on QR by \
Operator Type and Accreditation Status REMRENTERRBIDNEREH B 2021/22 2022/23
HKCAAVQ-accredited Operators KB R ERN S E 3,290 3,182
PAA Operators BEEREENEERNE NS 1,195 1,522
Assessment Agencies ERR g 75 794 755
Self-accrediting Operators BITRIE M EPE 3,346 3,407
No. of Qualifications on QR EFEZMENERZB 8,625 8,866

-
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Number of Qualifications on QR
by QF Level REREBRRETNERELE 2021/22 2022/23
HKQF Levels 5 - 7 BREEBELEFELR 2,520 2,653
HKQF Levels 1 - 4 BEFBE-EFOR 6,105 6,213
No. of Qualifications on QR EFEEMENERHE 8,625 8,866
umber of Qualifications on QR by CAT Arrangement and REH ZRENEBLTHMERENTFIRLE \
by Operator Type of Accreditation Status DNWEREER 2021/22 2022/23
With CAT (Programme) and/or CAT WEEHREREY (RE) KX 318 302
(Recognition of Prior Learning) BRRERER CBEERERT)
From Self-accrediting Operators BITATEMEHERE 97 99
From HKCAAVQ-accredited and PAA KB RFENABENEENE 221 203
Operators B E P E R
With CAT (Institutional) MEZSREREE (RR) 2,872 2,825
From Self-accrediting Operators BITAT S S HEE AR 1,965 1,913
From HKCAAVQ-accredited and PAA ErE R E M ARENBENE 907 912
BIREE A RE

K Operators

* Figures as at March of the year

BT GFE= HEIEEE
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H ==
Major Developments FEERE

Indication of QF credit for Programmes at QF Levels 5 - 7

In compliance with the implementation plan promulgated by the EDB in June 2019, all required indications
of QF Credit for Learning Programmes at QF Levels 5 to 7 on Qualifications Register (QR) have been
completed.

With effect from 1 September 2020, QF credit has been indicated for all newly registered programmes
under non-self-accrediting operators, and a system-built remark for the relevant range of QF credit has
been displayed for full-time four-year Bachelor’s degree programmes and full-time one-year taught
master’s degree programmes under self-accrediting operators if QF credit is not indicated for these two
types of programmes.

With effect from 1 September 2022, all programmes under non-self-accrediting operators have indicated
QF credit on QR.

QFQR4U - QR Promotion Campaign 2022

To enhance stakeholders’ understanding and familiarity with QF and QR, and to strengthen the connection
with and involvement of stakeholders, HKCAAVQ, with the support from the Qualifications Framework
Secretariat (QFS), launched the QR Promotion Campaign 2022 in June 2022. Under the theme “QFQR4U -
QR Is Your Partner For Planning Your Future”, various events were organised, including a video production
competition, a series of briefing-cum-workshops and an award ceremony.

The events were well received by participants, who indicated enhancement in their knowledge and
understanding of QF and QR through the events.
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Future Developments
QR System Upgrade

HKCAAVQ embarked an upgrade exercise for the QR system which is being conducted in two phases to
address the issue of end-of-life or technical support, and also to pave way for the growth and expansion
of the QR in the near future. The hardware and software of the QR system under phase one have been
upgraded successfully, while phase two is in the pipeline and is anticipated to be completed by end of 2023.

QR Website Revamp

QR website was officially launched in May 2008, and underwent a major revamp later in 2013. Over the
past ten years, different enhancements have been deployed to address the policy changes and improve
user experience. To keep up with technological advancement and to further enhance user experience, QR
website will be undergoing another revamp in 2023. Professional advice and stakeholder feedback will be
collected to ensure fit-for-purpose design and layouts. The QR website is anticipated to turn into a new
look in 2024.
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HKCAAVQ's main role is to safeguard the credibility of qualifications under the Hong Kong Qualifications
Framework (HKQF) and support the enhancement of the quality of education and training in Hong
Kong. HKCAAVQ can provide advisory and consultancy services in Hong Kong and with the approval of
the Secretary for Education of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (SAR) Government, quality
assurance services outside Hong Kong.

Consultancy Projects in the Greater Bay Area

During the course of the past year, HKCAAVQ has been expanding our consultancy and accreditation
services to the GBA through various projects, including rendering assistance in the development of
the quality assurance mechanism for Guangdong Lifelong Education Qualification Framework (GDQF),
conducting School Review for Mainland schools offering Hong Kong Secondary Education Curriculum and
accreditation of learning programmes jointly offered by institutions in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Supporting the Development of Guangdong's Qualifications Framework

Working closely with the Guangdong Academic Credit Bank, HKCAAVQ has been providing consultancy
service relating to the development of a quality assurance mechanism under the GDQF. Up till March 2023,
HKCAAVQ has shared policies, guidelines and practices related to accreditation conducted by HKCAAVQ,
moderation mechanism for industry competency standards and experience in managing the Qualifications
Register (QR) in Hong Kong with the Guangdong Academic Credit Bank. Apart from arranging observation
of accreditation exercises for experts and officials from Guangdong, HKCAAVQ, during the period from
April 2022 to March 2023, has also conducted five training workshops with a total of 281 attendees, who are
experts and officials involved in the development of Guangdong's accreditation mechanism.
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School Review BT

In line with the Government’s policy on encouraging primary and secondary schools of Guangdong, Hong
Kong and Macao to set up schools or to provide specific classes for admission of Hong Kong and Macao
children in Guangdong with boarding services, HKCAAVQ, since 2022, has started offering School Review
service to schools in Mainland China operating Hong Kong secondary school curriculum to prepare
students to sit for the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education (HKDSE) Examination. By assessing
whether the operations of the Hong Kong section of the Mainland schools requesting for such review
service are comparable to those of similar registered schools in Hong Kong, the first School Review was
successfully completed in October 2022.

Consultancy Work in Macao

Among other consultancy work, collaboration with Macao’s higher education institutions (HEIs) has
been one of HKCAAVQ's key interests. With prior approval of the Secretary for Education, HKCAAVQ was
commissioned by HEIs in Macao to conduct programme reviews under the revised Higher Education Law of
the Macao Special Administrative Region. HKCAAVQ was also invited to provide training for Macao’s HEls
on various aspects of quality assurance and enhancement. We would continue to have collaboration with
Macao HEls in quality assurance and enhancement initiatives.

Local and Collaborative Projects
Review on Sub-degree Education

HKCAAVQ was appointed by EDB to conduct a review on sub-degree education (the Study). The Study aimed
to examine the sub-degree education landscape and utilise the research findings to better differentiate
the positioning of Associate Degree (AD) and Higher Diploma (HD). Additionally, the Study proposed
enhancement measures for HD as a pathway for employment at the para-professional or technical level in
the Vocational and Professional Education and Training (VPET) sector, while considering the development
of applied degrees in Hong Kong.
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To examine the positioning, structure, and the curriculum of sub-degree education, HKCAAVQ reviewed
similar education systems in other countries, such as Australia, Canada, Finland, Germany, Singapore,
and the United Kingdom. Additionally, HKCAAVQ held dialogue sessions to gather inputs from local
stakeholders about the existing AD and HD programmes, as well as the Updated Revised Common
Descriptors for AD and HD Programmes under the New Academic Structure (the Common Descriptors).

After considering overseas practices and feedback from stakeholders, it was proposed that there
should be a sharper differentiation between AD and HD to reflect their respective positioning. While AD
provides articulation to degrees and equips students with transferable skills that support their lifelong
learning, HD should be well articulated with Applied Learning subjects in senior secondary education and
applied degrees to form a complete and intact VPET pathway. This approach enables HD to support the
development of workforce with a stronger vocational and/or professional orientation, meeting the needs
of industries, professions and society as a whole. Additionally, HD becomes more inclusive by allowing
admission of in-service and experienced applicants through recognition of prior learning and credit
accumulation and transfer as part of the standing admission requirements.

HKCAAVQ submitted the final report and a set of draft of the revised Common Descriptors to EDB. Having
conducted a series of stakeholder consultation including programme providers, trade and professional
bodies, secondary schools, and employers, the revised Common Descriptors are set to take effect in the
academic year 2024/25. EDB, in conjunction with HKCAAVQ, will closely monitor the implementation to
ensure that the quality of the programmes complies with the accreditation standards.
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Pilot Project on the Development of Applied Degree Programmes

In 2021, EDB kick-started the Pilot Project on the Development of Applied Degree Programmes (the Pilot
Project). The Pilot Project sets out to gain experience in the practical issues involved in developing applied
degree programmes, including operational and other implementation details as well as the corresponding
support measures. Moreover, the Pilot Project will assess the possible implications for the higher
education system as a whole.

The following institutions and programmes were selected for the Pilot Project:

Caritas Institute of Higher Education Bachelor of Nursing (Honours)

Bachelor of Applied Science with Honours in

Hong Kong Metropolitan University Integrated Testing, Inspection and Certification

Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Horticulture,
Arboriculture and Landscape Management

Technological and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong of the Vocational Training Council

Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Applied

Tung Wah College Gerontology

HKCAAVQ worked closely with the four institutions to develop the programmes. Upon completing the
quality assurance processes, the four programmes were launched in the 2022/23 academic year.

A report on the development of applied degree programmes was submitted to EDB in January 2023,
outlining their characteristic features and implementation details. Building on the findings from the first
round of the Pilot Project, the second round is scheduled to take place in the second half of 2023. During
this round, the proposed framework of applied degrees, implementation details and support measures will
be reviewed with the aim of informing the development of relevant policies to foster the development of
applied degrees.
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Study on Non-local Medical qualifications

The Medical Registration (Amendment) Ordinance 2021 came into effect on 29 October 2021. Under this
ordinance, doctors with recognised non-local medical qualifications are eligible to apply for special
registration to practise in Hong Kong without taking licensing examination. HKCAAVQ was appointed by
the Government in November 2021 to conduct a study to examine the curricula of recognised non-local
medical qualifications against the standards of the medical qualifications offered by two local universities.
Findings from the study are presented to the Special Registration Committee (SRC) established under the
Medical Council of Hong Kong (MCHK), which they consider submitting the list of comparable qualifications
to the Registrar of Medical Practitioners for promulgation. As of the end of 2022, 75 non-local medical
qualifications have been recommended by SRC for recognition.

Accreditation of Collaborative Programmes

Apart from the consultancy projects conducted in the GBA, a rising demand for accreditation services
between institutions in Mainland China and Hong Kong has been observed during the reporting period. In
January 2023, three Higher Diploma programmes in the Business and Management area jointly offered by
the Hong Kong Design Institute and Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education of the Vocational Training
Council and the Shenzhen Polytechnic University (formerly known as Shenzhen Polytechnic which was
upgraded to a university in June 2023) were accredited by HKCAAVQ, further promoting talent exchange in
the GBA.

Reference Guide on Work-based Learning (WBL) under HKQF

In response to the growing demand for graduates to become work-ready, WBL is emerging as a prominent
approach in the academic, VPET and continuing education sectors. HKCAAVQ has been commissioned by
EDB to conduct a study on WBL under the HKQF to better understand the overall development of WBL
and produce a practical reference guide to stakeholders for further supporting the development and
implementation of WBL in Hong Kong. Having consulted different local stakeholders as well as overseas
quality assurance agencies, the reference guide is expected to be finalised and submitted to EDB in the
third quarter of 2023.

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23

Strategic Plan
R RS TS BI TSRS >4

Operational Review Financial Report Appendix

e Hh BEE2 B R AT 2
(2021 FEE AT (EET) 6H1) 2021910 A 29 BARK - $FERR

MZEARIE S EEAL - BRA %ol BB AE L
EGDBE - FFERN 2021511 ARBUFERE - ARG BRIE
A3 8 2 8 JER SR 3 R P K B2 2 B E%EW/W%%%@W%%
ABEBZESETHREIMEZESERMARER  XHEEEE
B B R - AR EAME B E R B JE A B
BEERE - BE202FK  BEZIARNIFLHEEEELAF TS
I8 o

IR RIE VAT

BT AKER PEAMMEES AMEBEYTERENFTRKITAZE
R 02023561 7 RS \Iii%ﬁ%TE,%%uiﬁ;&ﬁrﬁﬁﬁu%&%ﬁ
EHBE B - ORI ZE RS (arfE R IIB ZE 2 - B
2023¢6ﬂﬂT&ﬁ7K'ﬂ)/\f’E S =l EMEREENS ﬁ&xﬁ
R EEE  BEIMBTERERAA R -

BEEBT [ TER/REEE | 25555

ERBIFEKEABERKTNERLEHBEREBIRRE - | TIERAXS
B ERASM - BEHE RFEEERRT AR BTE -
TERXUERET  MRAEBEB T I THERRZEE ] BEM
RHHERBERNEE  URHEMALSEES UXEEFNED
%E%Dﬁﬁﬁ Eﬁﬂ%ﬂifiqj H:F%)%HD u/] (=nA) )DJUE)]Z’XHE}TT%%&/&
HNERIRFHNE - WAEN 2023F FE=F2RX2EIEIEH -



96

Highlights of the Year Chairman’s Message Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat Strategic Plan Operational Review Financial Report Appendix

FEY ERFE BRERE FER WER KA RSB TR BBmE 23

Consultancy Study on Veterinary Qualification Accreditation Systems

HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department (AFCD) in July
2019 to conduct a study on veterinary qualification accreditation systems (the Study). The Study set out
to review the minimum requirements for registration as a veterinary surgeon in Hong Kong. The study
involves collection of data from universities and veterinary qualifications accreditation body. In spite of the
impact of pandemic during the study period, the study will be completed in mid-2023.
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Key Figures FEHF
2021/22 2022/23
Number of Appointed Specialists TERER 626 % 638 7

Number of Capacity Building Activities

=R

42 sessions 35X
1,154 participants AJX

41 sessions BX
1,192 participants AJX

Conducting training to operators and specialists is a statutory function of HKCAAVQ. A range of training
activities were provided to operators and specialists in the forms of regular, thematic and tailor-made. In
response to the development of the COVID-19 pandemic, most regular and thematic training activities were
delivered via live webinars. As the pandemic had receded, HKCAAVQ conducted a survey to gather feedback
from stakeholders on the delivery mode of training activities. The result would be used to formulate the

future deployment of various delivery modes.

Capacity Building for Stakeholders

REDEERNIZINER

Stakeholders BFhE 2021/22 2022/23
Operators PRI 35 1,042
Specialists BX 6 150

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23

APERBEVAE B BREREREMEZIRME - AT - £/
HREMEABNETRTEAET - ZRIBEFE - FERAID
H7E BN = RENE R DA B AUA M8 B AR U TT - BEE RIS A
AERRBIEDENETERAE  WESHERR  HEER
AR BIRFFINESRAZA

Total
st

1,192

2022/23



Highlights of the Year Chairman’s Message Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat Strategic Plan Operational Review Financial Report Appendix

FEY ERFE BRERE FER MER KA RSB TR s Fisk

During the reporting period, some operators engaged HKCAAVQ to provide tailor-made trainings. The SERNWEHAR T EZ L E RS IR :
major clients of tailor-made trainings are listed below:

e Customs Canine Force, Customs and Excise Department o  ABEHE —BEEEAR

e Hong Kong Fire Services Department o  ABEME

e Hong Kong Institute of Construction, Construction Industry Council o REXEY — DEREEMR

e Hong Kong Police College, Hong Kong Police Force o ABEKE —BBEREMR

As a standing practice, an evaluation was conducted after each training activity. The trend of the mean —WEEE - AEREREBIEEINESEITMEEN ML - 2MENE
scores of overall satisfaction is shown in the chart below: BITOREERBEWT -

Participants’ view on the Quality of the Training Activities of HKCAAVQ
S2NEHFERIEDOREE

4.5

4 " 37 4.36

o 429 L7
39
Mean Score* 3
T g

2.5
2
1.5
1

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Specialists 2R Operators & &
* Mean score is calculated from the participants’ degree of agreement with the statement “the overall quality of the event * TR S TIRIEZ NEL [N E - H5TEAE E | —[Fiu 6.2 57
was high”, where score 5 indicates “strongly agree” and score 1 indicates “strongly disagree”. Al K578 1 3 RHEFETEE 55 RBIFFRE -
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As part of the HKCAAVQ's official website revamp, the HKCAAVQ Online Specialists Resource Centre (OSRC)
had undergone significant enhancements and has been integrated into the website. The current OSRC
serves as a platform for close interaction with HKCAAVQ specialists and offers a self-paced learning centre
covering the accreditation and quality assurance practices. Specialists can engage with the materials at
their own convenience and pace for a more streamlined and accessible learning experience.

Appointment and Engagement of Specialists

To ensure that there is an adequate supply of experts to support its accreditation and assessment services,
HKCAAVQ maintains a pool of Specialists and regularly reviews the utilisation with respect to the projected
business activities.

Specialists are normally identified from HKCAAVQ's established networks including the Industry Training
Advisory Committees (ITACs), trade unions, trade associations, industry training organisations, professional
bodies, academia, and other local and international quality assurance organisations. Specialists are
appointed on the basis of their experience and expertise in relevant industries and/or disciplines as well as
in quality assurance and/or the qualifications framework.

At the end of the reporting period, 638 Specialists were listed in the Specialists Register covering all 14
Areas of Study and Training in the Qualifications Register. The overall utilisation of Specialists was 85%.

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23
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RESEARCH AND TRAINING #fz K %3
Distribution of Specialists (local vs. non-local) Utilisation of Specialists
3 2 FEAR R EL I EXRZEFTENLLA

17%

15%

Non-local
Not Engaged in
A Accreditation Exercise
REDETERTE
Engaged in
Accreditation Exercise
W2V T
Future Developments R LA R

The COVID-19 pandemic has undoubtedly transformed the way we work and learn. At HKCAAVQ, we REBYE ABNIFEHESERAERBRBEHNEE - FTER
are committed to adapting to these challenges by leveraging new technologies and exploring innovative BONEEE  FIAFRRRREF 2 IBIIER - WRERMHT&
training delivery modes. We also aimed to provide up-to-date and effective training activities that address HERRECEMRER/RNERT K2 BBEINGESD -

the evolving education landscape and meet the needs of our stakeholders.
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HKCAAVQ places prime importance on building strong links with a wide range of stakeholders not only to
keep abreast of the latest developments in various sectors and industries, but also to share our quality
assurance practices with education and training institutions, government authorities, partner agencies and
members of the public both locally and internationally. We support this strategic objective by reaching out
to stakeholders through dialogue and active engagement.

Local Engagement

HKCAAVQ organises different activities to inform the stakeholders about the latest developments in
our services and to promote and disseminate good practices in quality assurance. By invitation, we
participate in activities organised by partnering organisations to share experiences and promote mutual

understanding. We also take the initiatives to provide trainings, workshops and briefings all year round to
build capacity of our key stakeholders.

2022.06.09

Accreditation of Diploma of Applied Education
FERH A URFTEEE

The Diploma of Applied Education was accredited at QF Level 3 for implementation in
2023/24 academic year.

JERHE WBRIERT AEFRIBE=RNER - WG 2023/24 BEFREHED -
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2022.06.23

HKCAAVQ provides consultancy service to Guangdong Academic Credit Bank on developing
a quality assurance mechanism under the Guangdong Lifelong Education Qualifications
Framework

TERRERREYEEEERERER (B ESREHG)) R RS

56 experts and officials involved in the development of Guangdong's accreditation mechanism
attended a training workshop organised by HKCAAVQ.

56 B2 HEERRBERNBRNERNE B - 2NHFERRRAZITIES

2022.07.06-2022.12.31

HKCAAVQ co-launches the QR Promotion Campaign 2022 with the Qualifications Framework Secretariat

& Py » STER AR R E R LS S M 82022
| 4 Q'! s B With the aims to enhance stakeholders’ understanding and familiarity with the Qualifications Framework
‘ : » \ 2\ ° (QF) and Qualifications Register (QR), and to strengthen the connection with and involvement of
2 il o = stakeholders in the promotion of QF and QR, HKCAAVQ, in collaboration with the Qualifications Framework
= A\ Secretariat, launched the QR Promotion Campaign 2022 in the second half of 2022. Themed “QFQR4U - QR

is your partner for planning your future”, the campaign highlighted the key purpose of “QF and QR for you”
in the formulation of planning for future pursuance of studies and careers.

The campaign consisted of a series of events, including a Video Production Competition, several Briefing-
cum-Workshops and the Awarding Ceremony.

ArEREEER %Wi&%ﬁ/\mﬂi?’ﬁ’f&ﬂjfﬁr%ﬂﬂ?&%ﬁi‘uzmﬂ A TQFQR4U — BEEA T « BIRAR
R BEBHEE  MBRELINAFNELGEERENEERMOREL THE  YEEERSENIGHE
EEER T%&ﬁﬁ_%ﬁ SR EFNENER  RAREREEREREEAMERREELEED K HIFTARRK
TTERARERHNBEEBH

[EERMHEERE2022] TR—FINES - BRERAELE BRI TEY RRERHAE -
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2022.07.21

HKCAAVQ participates in KMB Academy Establishment Ceremony
TR R LB R A L B

Hon Rock Chen Chung-nin, SBS, JP, Council Chairman of HKCAAVQ,
attended the KMB Academy Establishment Ceremony and officiated
the Plaque Unveiling Ceremony, a few months after the official
establishment of the KMB Academy in January 2022.

KMB was the first franchised bus company in Hong Kong accredited
by the Hong Kong Qualifications Frameworks (HKQF) to provide
professional training programmes for franchised bus maintenance
personnel and bus captains. “Certificate in Bus Maintenance” and
“Certificate in Public Bus (Franchised) Driving” offered by the KMB
Academy were recognised by HKCAAVQ at Level 2 and Level 3 under the
HKQF respectively.

NEBFERN 2022 F 1 AIEAMKIL - B HERREIFT AETT - FFERK
SEEMRMEHBSBS IPUTREBTSNHFENERRKIH#E - =
REREN -

NEBRREASEREEERERIATEETHEABRERREHRE
FIRRIZHME - AR BN [ELHERERRE] R[ENAK
ErEHEERE] ERETE  DHIEMEEEME_RE=R
Al e
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2022.07.22 & 2023.02.03 = i

Student Liaison Meetings
BABK/NEER

In the past year, HKCAAVQ conducted two Student Liaison Meetings on 22 July
2022 and 3 February 2023, each with more than 20 student representatives from
local higher education institutions. In the meetings, HKCAAVQ staff shared with
the students our services, Four-Stage Quality Assurance Process, accreditation
standards and process, and recent developments in the higher education sector.
Students also explored ways in which they may provide input to HKCAAVQ's quality
assurance process, and enhanced their understanding of quality assurance and
accreditation, through games and activities with our staff.

BE—F  FFERD AN 2022F7 A 22 H % 202352 A 3HETT T MK [ ZEARK/
e  BRERYEBRB0LRARMSEHERRNEERRLE - FELH
BESZFRELARRD ZABHRE - WEEREERERR  FFEE8FBE - A
FEERENRTER - eNEHNE B/ NERKES - R CERIZTELEEZRE
R R 2L NS B EREYTIERANEZRELIERHEER -

2022.10.03

HKCAAVQ speaks at Rotary Club of Kai Tak’s Dinner Meeting
TERHERERRTREEE

Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director of HKCAAVQ, was invited to speak at the Rotary Club of
Kai Tak’s Dinner meeting. With a presentation themed “Pilot Project on the Development
of Applied Degree Programmes - A Progress Report”, Mr Chow shared with the Club’s
members, in addition to an overview of HKCAAVQ's scope of work in education and
training, the HKCAAVQ's roles and inputs in supporting the local government’s initiatives
in putting forward the development of Applied Degree Programmes.

TERRREAERRLERBLFERERBLBRESS  TEZL BN ZAEREHE
MIED SIS E R - € L - ARBRSEU [ERENERENER] 58 - BNFERE
XFRT SRS RIZRR EWABMIIE -
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2022.11.10

<=

QFQR4U Awarding Ceremony
QFQR4U - EF & ET S 2022 155 8142

In collaboration with the Qualifications Framework Secretariat (QFS), HKCAAVQ launched the QR Promotion
Campaign 2022 themed “QFQR4U - QR is your partner for planning your future”. A series of events
including a video production competition and a series of briefing-cum-workshops were organised. The
Awarding Ceremony was also successfully held on 10 November 2022. The Campaign was well received by
students and institutions.

TERHMRAEEREWEREN [ EFERMERTE2022] - EB A [QFQRAU — BFEZ M « BIRIREIXK
;!U EEHRE  IERER T EREAELRER —RINEBRFIG TIEY - HEHETRER 2022411 A10H
BIMEBTT o RN HEERTEIRZ R KA S -

2022.11.11

HKCAAVQ participates in the Life Planning Education Conference 2022
TERSHELERBEMTE 2022

HKCAAVQ, as a partner organisation of the Business-School Partnership Programme (BSPP), participated
in the “Life Planning Education Conference 2022" held by the Education Bureau. Ms Anne Lau, Head and
Senior Registrar of Qualifications Framework & Qualifications Register, represented HKCAAVQ to receive
the certificate of appreciation for supporting life planning education.

1R [BREERTE | REBEMH s —  TEREALERHE RENN [LERBA M S 2022] - FE
RERRHN - URGARBOEBEEREHE @ AERAIE SRATELT(EERBREEAM)
BT AR B BRI ©
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HKCAAVQ Press Conference 2022
FERTEBEFE 2022

In order to introduce HKCAAVQ's work on the development of the Pilot Project on the
Development of Applied Degree Programmes (the Pilot Project) to attract public attention
and to convey important messages, a press conference was held in November 2022. The first
batch with a total of four programmes were successfully launched in the 2022/23 academic
year, aiming to enhance the progression pathways of vocational education and to provide
diversified learning and employment opportunities for the younger generations.

Mr Esmond Lee Chung-sin, JP, Deputy Secretary for Education, Hon Rock Chen Chung-
nin, SBS, JP, Council Chairman of HKCAAVQ, and Mr Steve Lai, General Manager of the
Qualifications Framework Secretariat (QFS) were invited as officiating guests.

AFERN2022F 11 ARTT [RASMRIZAENE ] TERFE  ERUEABMLRIZET
EERZT K B R T1E - Bt AMERIZC X 2022/23 BEH#ETT - ORCBFER KL - REFA

RESTEBNREKS -

RALERTEEFB THERBEMERFTEERE P TERASEIERMHEZE -
SBS ' IPANEFERBWERBLEREBEEERIBEBTLRE
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2023.01.28

HKCAAVQ attends Seminar at the Education University
TERHERERERABBE D ZRIERE

Council Chairman Hon Rock Chen Chung-nin, SBS, JP was invited to speak at one
of the seminars under the Educational Innovation Leadership Project initiated
by The Education University of Hong Kong to share his unique insights with the
primary stakeholders of the education sector from the perspective of his roles
in the fields of his profession and education, in order to foster ideas exchange
and to prepare the younger generation for future education. Hon Rock Chen gave
a presentation that focused on youth’s pathways and their connection with the
mainland and the rest of the world.

AERAREERERMEFES - SBS  IPHEHREBHE RSN [HEEIFE
HE | EAHBENZZRY A TEFEEHBRNBR — BEREEABMNER ] B
B BHEATERNENZMEEEXRAEWHBHNBERE  REBR
R REE AR ARKOHE MiF e o
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2023.03.11
§ HKUSPAcCE
HKCAAVQ speaks at HKU SPACE International Conference A R
TEFSESBAEEEEBEGHRD S Second International Conference on
_ o _ _ Quality in Self-financed Hi §ducation
HKU.School of Professmnal and Contlnm.ng Educatloq (HIr_(U SPACE), as one of_the major — Conne Local a
providers of self-financed and transnational education in Hong Kong, held its Second :
International Conference on Quality and Self-financed Higher Education “Connecting Local > L

and Global” in March 2023.

Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director of HKCAAVQ, and a number of industry leaders took part
in the Round-table Discussion focusing on Cap. 320 and its implementation in Hong Kong.
During the session, Mr Chow gave a presentation titled “The Development of Institutional
Review (IR) Standards in line with Cap. 320 Amendments and Implementations”.

BRABEZEEE S (HKU SPACE) A MIRE A EMEEBEN T EEME L — %2
(Ert 2023 F 3 AR ME —_ERREE  NREGRAESSHENER -
HERERERAEALLERSMXABM2EEREH - FIwWERES320E (F_LE[HEM)

EARMERNER - B - ARBRERIAEI20E(FE LEREH) RANEEBTRZER
EREHEIEGR -
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ENGAGEMENT AND COLLABORATION #/MEZR &1

Other Communication Platforms

HKCAAVQ nurtures its close working relationship with the quality assurance community in Hong Kong
and reinforces the communication with the local and international communities through newsletters and
websites.

2023.04.12

HKCAAVQ participates at China Study Abroad Forum 2022
A1 R 2 R E & SR 2022

Themed “New Journey, New Mission, New Initiative - International Education and Talent Cultivation”, the
annual China Study Abroad Forum 2022 organised by the Chinese Service Center for Scholarly Exchange
(CSCSE) was held on 22 April 2022. Mr Albert Chow, HKCAAVQ Executive Director, was invited as one of the
keynote speakers.

Mr Chow's presentation titled “From Quality Assurance to Quality Enhancement and Excellence” gave
attending guests from education divisions across the globe an overview of the latest development of
HKCAAVQ, with key focuses on sustaining quality assurance work during the pandemic period, digital
transformation progress, as well as international and regional collaboration.

BB 2REH O M [P EES2RIE2022] 71 2022F 4 B 22 BT - wiEA [FIER - ifEes - FE
”—HBETHFEBREATIER ] - FFERE %?ﬂ%iﬁﬁ'ﬁiﬁz&%ﬁqﬂﬂiiaﬁx BE-

EEHE [RERRFRE  EREADEREH] BEEBR  FAXE2RSHHE RN ALHATER

M ERE - YERNTAREHEAERNAERERRETLIE  HBBBELURERER MR AE
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HKCAAVQ speaks at Forum of “Quality Assurance for Pandemic-Disrupted Higher Education:
An Accreditation Perspective”
TERSHEA T B Bk miE

At the invitation of Eurasia University in Xi'an, Dr Joe Hong, Deputy Executive Director (Academic) of
HKCAAVQ gave a presentation titled “Digitalisation Journey of HKCAAVQ - Robotic Process Automation” at
the Forum of “Quality Assurance for Pandemic-Disrupted Higher Education: An Accreditation Perspective”
in May 2022. Dr Hong shared with participants how HKCAAVQ, as a leading QA agency in the region,
responded strategically to the needs from higher education institutions during the pandemic time, and how

HKCAAVQ overcame the difficulties and adapted to the new normalcy.

AERAARE (B REFS L RALRME 2R  DEAZERENNHE - wELERRERES
EHE R ARERIEHRXZENSE a’%i%ﬁ%aﬁlf’ﬁ FEERELI [BBRM N BEERETE
REBBL — TIEREEBE] BB - MILE AN AT EBLR BRI RO ES SRR

TR ERFFERNA R REBREE - BREATRE

From Quality Assurance to
Quality Enhancement and Excellence

Overview

Pilot Project on the Development
of Applied Degree Programmes

Commissioned by the Education Bureau of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (HKSAR) Government

Vocational.andiprofessionalleducationiandirainingunikong kong
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2022.11.29-2022.11.30

HKCAAVQ speaks at Macao Polytechnic University’s 14th Higher Education International Conference
TERSEHRMEIAZ [E+HNESSHERBREMNHNS ]

Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director of HKCAAVQ, was invited to speak at Macao Polytechnic University's
14th Higher Education International Conference. Themed “Online Teaching and Sustainable Quality
Assurance: Challenges and Perspectives”, the two-day Conference was held in full virtual mode. During
the Conference, Mr Chow introduced HKCAAVQ's engagement in the Pilot Project on the Development of
Applied Degree Programmes commissioned by the Education Bureau of the HKSAR Government to the
participants.

AEREBREABRNCAEREFERRPIETRBRMN [E+NESSHERRZMHEE] - RERAN
it TALA%?J:RKEEG TER R LHBRUHBEERNESRE  KBERE]| - HE L AEBRER
HEALNAFBERIHEREEHN [ERABARIZAGHS ] ETNITE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B IZEENRES

TO THE COUNCIL MEMBERS OF HONG KONG COUNCIL FOR ACCREDITATION OF
ACADEMIC AND VOCATIONAL QUALIFICATIONS

[Established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”) set out on pages [eee] to [eee], which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in reserves and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as
at 31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Council in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT By &% &AMk EE

Other Information

The council members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Council Members and Those Charged with Governance
for the Financial Statements

The council members are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the council
members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the council members are responsible for assessing the Council's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the council members either intend to liquidate the Council or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Council's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT By Z#kES

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 15 of the Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap. 1150), and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the council members.
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FEIT ES 0 BRERE FER MER REGERATE TERE s Fisk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT By Z#kES

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the council members’ use of the going concern basis of o HERKERARBELESHARNGE HIEL &R o BRI
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related ERRETRE - MRS FEEBIENIENE B EXTHE
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council's ability to continue as a going TN - R AT S B E R RB LR IELEARE - I
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our REMRAGFEERTREN - BBV ETZHBMBRERIRS
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are FREIEITEHRERPNBEIEE - BREEENEESTT @ B
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to BMEEERIFEREER - ﬁfFﬁE’J%uﬁ%ﬁBﬁ\V%{Eﬂi#ﬁiH
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease 1EFTES E’J%u‘l' BEE o A - RRBESER A ERE
to continue as a going concern. R BERHEE -

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the . FHEP S HMARMERET AR - BBNAD - BIEEE - UK
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%@im&ﬁ%%‘?z ZHFNEIE o
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope BREMFIAN HMBEEREEBTENEZEE  SRETHE
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal BRENERE - BFEEMESTPHERIL 2 ABEITEZ RN
control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =g AERIT T
Certified Public Accountants B IZEED

Hong Kong ﬁ}%

19 September 2023 —E_=FHhATNHE
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FEHY XFEFE BHERE Ba=a) WER REEE RS TRk B R LBE>S
7-\ -
FTHHRBER
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZ =T = =F=F=+—HItFE
Notes 2023 2022
B 5T HK$ B HK$ &1
Income PN
Revenue =E LN 5 115,142,101 103,699,311
Government grants BT 48 B 5,434,349 5,841,790
Investment income EWA b 4,624,966 2,580,277
Other income Hi g A 7 292,827 533,447
125,494,243 112,654,825
Expenditures X
Staff costs 8 TR (61,001,593) (61,443,416)
Administrative expenses THER (11,919,555) (11,980,266)
Direct accreditation/consultancy costs BiEATE BRI A (13,136,503) (9,070,352)
Council meeting and committee expenses AEgEhkEEEYH (543,047) (284,452)
(86,600,698) (82,778,486)
Surplus for the year REERE 8 38,893,545 29,876,339
Other comprehensive expense Hitp2m (k) =
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: ~ AE IS E#H T EEIEHAEL -
Fair value loss on investments in equity RARBEGEAEZS A AELMEEKED
instruments at fair value through other R TAREZ ARBEEBRE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") (917,700) (2,775,300)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AFEEHMEEBAX (917,700) (2,775,300)
Total comprehensive income for the year RKEEZEKWREE 37,975,845 27,101,039
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FEY ERFE BRERE FER WER KA RSB TR BBmE 23

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AIFSHAIN &

At 31 March 2023 W=ZE=-=F=A=+—H

Notes 2023 2022
B 5T HK$ B HK$ B
Non-current assets ERBEE

Fixed assets B EE 10 2,957,691 2,641,934
Investments "E 11 76,547,747 72,816,546
79,505,438 75,458,480

Current assets REEE
Investments wE 11 7,850,980 9,422,021
Accounts and other receivables JFEE ST B RN L i e LA R 12 18,502,372 26,301,826
Contract assets BHEE 348,002 —
Bank deposits and cash RITHERERE 13 141,944,589 99,242,432
168,645,943 134,966,279

Current liabilities REBEE
Deferred government grants RIEBUT B 14 97,320 734,349
Contract liabilities BRBE 15 23,420,950 21,618,010
Other payables and accruals B RN EATEBR 4,362,192 5,105,433
Provision for staff gratuities B TAm & 16 2,834,713 4,458,533
30,715,175 31,916,325
Net current assets REBEETFE 137,930,768 103,049,954
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBERS 217,436,206 178,508,434
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FEY ERFE BRERE FER WER KA RSB TR BBmE 23

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Bf#fiR 3
At31 March 2023 W= E==%=A=+—A1

Notes 2023 2022
iFs HK$ &% HK$ &1
Reserves & 17
Accumulated surpluses RE R — —
General reserve — R EE 87,000,000 83,000,000
Designated reserve BB 128,488,616 93,595,071
Investment revaluation reserve WEEGHE (1,225,900) (308,200)
Total reserves fEEHEE 214,262,716 176,286,871
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred government grants RIEBUT B 14 - 97,320
Provision for staff gratuities B LA MM e M 16 3,173,490 2,124,243
3,173,490 2,221,563
217,436,206 178,508,434

The financial statements on pages 74 to 123 were approved and authorised for issue by the Council AEREHETEETENETL4Z 1238 2 HE®RE - WAE THIA
members and are signed on its behalf by: TREEE -

A )

Chairman Executive Director

FE BEE
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FEHF FEFE HWHBRE TER WER R RS TS iSRS i 5%
o g4
RBEEER
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZ =T = =F=F=+—HItFE
Investment
Accumulated General Designated revaluation
surpluses reserve reserve reserve Total
E = —REE EEMRE REEGRE ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
pogesd ks T ks ok
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Mt (@) (Mt (b)) (MF3E ()
At 1 April 2021 R-ZZE-—FmMA—H — 82,000,000 64,718,732 2,467,100 149,185,832
Surplus for the year REZHEH 29,876,339 — — — 29,876,339
Other comprehensive expense for the year REEEM 2 AR E — — — (2,775,300) (2,775,300)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year NEEEZEWEERT 29,876,339 — — (2,775,300) 27,101,039
Transfer from accumulated surpluses for the year REE B RET BRI (29,876,339 1,000,000 28,876,339 — —
At 31 March 2022 R-E-_—_F=A=+—H — 83,000,000 93,595,071 (308,200) 176,286,871
Surplus for the year EE R 38,893,545 — — — 38,893,545
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEFEMEEKET — — — (917,700) (917,700)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEEEREES 38,893,545 — — (917,700) 37,975,845
Transfer from accumulated surpluses for the year REE B Rt Rshed (38,893,545) 4,000,000 34,893,545 — —
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=A=+—H — 87,000,000 128,488,616 (1,225,900) 214,262,716
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FEY ERFE BRERE FER WER KA RSB

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES &% 8%
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT - =F=-A=+—HIEFE

Notes:

(@  The general reserve has been established since 1 April 2019 in order to meet operational contingencies and to
safeguard the Council's ability to continue as a going concern. It is transferred to or from the accumulated surplus
up to the actual annual operating expenditure (excluding any future depreciation charges of the related assets
under the designated reserve) as at the year ended of reporting periods (rounded to the nearest million). The
general reserve is available for general use and can be utilised at the discretion of the Council.

(b)  The designated reserve has been established since 1 April 2019 for the future capital expenditure requirement on
leasehold properties. It is transferred to or from the accumulated surplus plus any surplus in excess of the agreed

ceiling of the general reserve.

(c)  The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity instruments at
FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies in note 3.
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FENY XRFE BHERE Ba=a) WER REEE RS B R LBE>S
\ —
IREMSENER
For the year ended 31 March 2023 #\ 2 — T == =+—HILFE
Notes 2023 2022
B 5T HK$ B HK$ &1

Surplus for the year REFZEH 38,893,545 29,876,339
Adjustments for: FEIER -

Depreciation e 1,843,903 1,941,544

Interest income F B A (4,135,366) (2,288,827)

Dividend income on equity instruments M T AR B (489,600) (291,450)

Unrealised foreign exchange gain HIRME N E (165,290) (484,198)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital HEESPHAINLEERERE 35,947,192 28,753,408
Decrease (increase) in accounts and other receivables JFEE LA B S R L At R LA > (38D 6,333,523 (10,492,980
Increase in contract assets BHEEE (348,002) —
Decrease in deferred government grants R AE U 8 B R (734,349) (1,141,790)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities AHEEEmORY) 1,802,940 (4,529,947)
(Decrease) increase in other payables and accruals H i SR ESTE A Ofl4) 20 (743,241) 1,106,050
Decrease in provision for staff gratuities BT HmN e &R (574,573) (375,504)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEBASHIR G FE 41,683,490 13,319,237
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BARTEEEMNK (2,159,660) (1,278,082)
Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at fERREIE AT E 2 @ BEESHIA

amortised costs 9,395,937 11,672,862
Payment for purchase of financial assets at amortised costs AR HEX AN EZ SREEMRK (5,388,157) (19,479,938)
Payment for purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI BARATESARMEEKE 2 EmTE (6,969,600) —

Placement of bank deposits with maturity
of more than three months at acquisition
Withdrawal of bank deposits with maturity

F A=A A _ERIEIRSRTT 173K
A =18 A LA_ERIERRYIRITIF K

(117,942,107

(59,746,861)

of more than three months at acquisition 59,746,861 47,494,253
Interest received BB 5,650,547 148,011
Dividend received B U B 489,600 291,450
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES WEREFE AR FE (57,176,579) (20,898,305)
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FEY ERFE BRERE FER WER KA RSB TR BBmE 23

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B & RE28%
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

Notes 2023 2022

B 5T HK$ B HK$ &1

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R kReEBWRL T (15,493,089) (7,579,068)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING FYREMREEEY

OF THE YEAR 39,495,571 47,074,639
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END FRBeMREEZEY

OF THE YEAR 13 24,002,482 39,495,571

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23




Highlights of the Year Chairman’s Message Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat Strategic Plan Operational Review Financial Report Appendix
FEHR EEFE BHERSE FER &R REGERATE TERE BIERE >4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g##ssR=%pitst

For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2~ —=F=A=+—HILFE

Status of the Council

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”)
is a body corporate established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap. 1150). Under the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Ordinance (Cap. 592) (the “Ordinance”) the Council assumes its statutory role as the
Accreditation Authority and Qualification Registry ("QR") Authority under the Qualifications Framework
("QF"). As the Accreditation Authority, the Council is responsible for developing and implementing the
standards and mechanisms for accreditation of academic and vocational qualifications to underpin
the QF and for organising the accreditation exercises for the purposes as specified in the Ordinance.
The Council also provides advice to the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “HKSAR Government”) on the registration of non-local academic and professional courses,
the assessment on non-local qualifications and also on educational standards and qualifications
generally. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, all other Members and Executive Director of the Council are
appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR Government. Also, the determination of accreditation
fees, the financial budget and other operating policies of the Council are approved by the HKSAR
Government. Therefore the Council considers itself to be a government-related entity.

The registered office address is 10 Siu Sai Wan Road, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Council.
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FEY ERFE BRERE FER WER KA RSB TR BBmE 23

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong Financial 2. R REEITEBYEREER(H

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") B EREZER )
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year REERHERNETT BB ISIRE XA
In the current year, the Council has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong RAEE - REERRA T HBGMAGRMHO N NEEH
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily BREEMWET R - ZFERTE_T__F— A%k
effective for the annual periods beginning on 1 April 2022 for the preparation of the financial 7 46 4 16 B 75 S ) SR T2 AT o I AR A o
statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework BRVBRELEREIR2BE] LW ER
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 EBUGHRELEDE 16 ET] —ST-—FA=+HI
1& 2 BT AR R = Ab 4
RRAHE SRR
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before BEBSEERIE 169 2185] M - BB NEEE  ME
Intended Use BER®A 2 FTE50E
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract BAGTERNE 7R 2 1EE] BIEMEH - BITEHZ
B AR
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 - 2020 BB wEREL 21ER] BB mEZER
—ZT-N\FE
T EF 2 FERE
The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on RAFEEMA (FAEMBRELER) ETAHRBRAFER
the Council's financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the BEFE 2 IR R K St B RS Rk P < #RER I
disclosures set out in these financial statements. BmERTE o
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FEHR EEFE BHERSE FER &R REGERATE TERE BIERE >4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong Financial 2. R REEITEBYEREER(H
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued) B EHRELER ) (B)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective ERRMENARERVIET RAIEFT BB R ELEL
The Council has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been KNP AR ER AT B BMEIREREFTE] RIEETES
issued but are not yet effective: B s S 2ER
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BN REERIFE 175 o=k
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and BB BRGNS 1057 HEERAEBRENTINEEDE
its Associate or Joint Venture? REBGFTAERE 289 ZEHESFAEE?
ZIEET
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback? BRI BIMEERE 165 ErRARNHERE:
ZABET
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current BRGHEANFE1H 2B BEEDBRARDICE RBLE
and related amendments to Hong Kong BREBESR(ZETF)H
Interpretation 5 (2020) HRRAEET
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants* BRGHENE 15 2E5] HHEZENFERDEE
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies’ BRGHEE1RK BEBR 2 EE
Practice Statement 2 BB IR EEREREER
B2 1BF]
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements* BEEEHEAETRR HrER A L5
ERMBIREERE TR
ZIEET
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’ BERGHERES R 2B G ZER'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising BEGRHEAFE 125285 HE-XFELECZEENAE
from a Single Transaction’ B EERIR
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules? BEGHERE 1298 2185 RHEMEE - T RAEAR?
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 ! R-ZT==F—A— Bz ERBOFE B AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 (except for HKAS 12 paragraphs 4A and 2 RIZBZ=F— A Bz BRENFEREEX(REEESS
88A which are immediately effective upon issue of the amendments) ZERIZE 1257 4A K2 8BA RN ATIE IE R 18 BIRFAERD)
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined s FRFTE B EAsk 2 & FtR ) F E B A 3K
“ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 ¢ RIZ-F—A— Bz ERBNEEHRBER
The Council members anticipate that the application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will AFEHRK B TR BRE AT R] RAHERT BB M I S ERIFE A A R R
have no material impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable future. RAGHUBRREEERATE -
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FREIZ IRFE wEERE RTER WER RIEBRE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&sRax st
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 —FE —_=F=A=+—HIFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3.

Accounting Policies (continued)
3.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA.

3.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Council takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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FEY ERFE BRERE FER MER KA RSB TERE s Fisk

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 = =T = =F=A=+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. B BEHRREHEERFTESFTBER (E)
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies 3.3 FEEFEE

Revenue from contracts with customers REBEPE R W

The Council recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. KR TKEOZBE (Sptit) Rl - BN ERE

when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is MEEEENE M RGH) [1E6E] EETEPR -

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is B #2715 = 18 — TR B RE I 7 an SR A5 (S 2 TH 7 am SR

distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same. %)k — R BELE ARG AR MR -

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to the Eme TolEHEP T — BHEEREEEXRRAE

progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the % B A IRB T KA B AR HEEMAERRER

following criteria is met: NER

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the o  EPEARBBANRKEGIEFERARNBRBLOM
Council's performance as the Council performs; RERHE

e the Council's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as o  ARKBREENMRTEFPEEERAIENHR
the Council performs; or BRFEIEHIMEE © 3¢

e the Council's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Council o ABRHIEANRAIE— IE—HEZ$)%FHEA**1J€FHLE'J
and the Council has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. BE - AAREAMES RIEETHKNELNR D

A2 R o

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the BRI EEZ P EUS H 5% TR A HE R ah S AR TS 45 A A

distinct good or service. RN -

A contract asset represents the Council's right to consideration in exchange for goods or é\%’ﬂﬁ§%$%aﬁgﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁwmﬁ

services that the Council has transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is BN BZSRIALREZRGENG - SHNEERR

assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the EAM IR E R E 9T RIRE « i RKERRAER

Council's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before %Eﬂ RUER B R RER) - BIME B 25 055 )78 4 1) A i U

payment of that consideration is due. e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 = =T = =F=A=+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. HBEHRREHELERFTESFTEER ()
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 FEESFEEE(E)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
A contract liability represents the Council's obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Council has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Council's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction
of that performance obligation, that best depict the Council's performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Performance obligations for revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from accreditation services is recognised over time using input method.

Revenue from advisory services is recognised over time using input method.

Revenue from consultancy services and qualifications and other assessment services are
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains the control of the services.

Revenue from qualifications registry services is recognised over the contract period when the
relevant services are provided by the Council.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 = =T = =F=A=+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Council will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Council recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Council
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
revenue in the statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Council with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method as follows:

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

Over the remaining term of the lease
5 years
5years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 = =T = =F=A=+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. B BEHRREHEERFTESFTBER (E)
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.3 FEEFECE (E&)
Fixed assets (continued) EFEE (&)
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of A ERAEE  AREBERNTERZNERERRE
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective TR - AT E BN EBIRAREREARE -
basis.
An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are W - R RZRENEBNHERIR BT TSR HE
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal FERZEEEPRBERRLEBENN SR RZILER o EHEH
or retirement of an item of fixed assets is determined as the difference between the sales HESREEYR - WS RSN IE B ME K W slif
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. KRETRZIABNHEEMSHRIAMEREE L MNER -

WH B HER -

Impairment of fixed assets EFEEMRE
At the end of each reporting period, the Council reviews the carrying amounts of its fixed assets AREREWEMABRIELEAFTHERNETEEN
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment FREE UBRETZSFEERSLBERERRTR © W
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in REMBEDER  @EzrEEMTKREIERE  UETH
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). BEX(WE)IEE -
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the Bt EEN KBS BENAREE - AJEENR
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is HE#FAEZEAWEESEE - HEBKDERNEETE
recognised immediately in profit or loss. o
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased fﬁﬁ?\?ﬁﬁé@ﬁﬁﬁ% ' H'Jﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ#%%ﬁﬂ
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount Bt AR ©2E - HEIE IR M BREE TSR RERZ
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss BENBAFETERRRERARETHREE - A&
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised BEEXBE RN BT ER o

immediately in profit or loss.

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23




Highlights of the Year Chairman’s Message Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat Strategic Plan Operational Review Financial Report Appendix

FEY ERFE BRERE FER WER KA RSB TR BBmE 23

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. B BEHRREHEERFTESFTBER (E)
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 FEESFEEE(E)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business combinations on or after
the date of initial application, the Council assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Council as a lessee

Leases of low-value assets

The Council applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily

convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 = =T = =F=A=+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

The Council is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue of section 87 of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Council will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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DR HMRAAEEER TESFTEER ()

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3.
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.3 FEEFECE (E&)
Financial instruments SRITA

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for accounts
receivable arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. HBEHRREHELERFTESFTEER ()
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.3 FEEFECE (E&)

Financial instruments (continued) SRITA (&)

Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets EREEN SR

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised WE TGz emEENERRABHEKAGE -

cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect o E¥BEAAMBEANDMGHREREZERE
contractual cash flows; and E &

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments o GHRBRFSRETERBELZREREERIMA
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. ERAREERESZFNEMNESHEE ©

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value MR TINREZ SMAEREBRUA RN BEAELRE

through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"): B AEMEERE ((LAARBEAEEHLESH AR

b2 ERE])

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both o XBEANATHAURRKESORSRERLE
selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and ZEREE &

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments o  AHBERIREERHEACZREREEA/AINA
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. SRREERE 2B REE

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at financial assets at fair value through FrEEMEmEENEERRBRIEANEBETRE -

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. HBEHRREHELERFTESFTEER ()
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.3 FEEFECE (E&)

Financial instruments (continued) SRITA (&)

Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued) THEER AR B E ()

()  Amortised cost and interest income (i)  BESERKASFIF B UZA
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets SEARRB A AT ESRMEEM S - FISHWAT
measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying RAERNERETHR - REEBREEEREDN
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for SREEMNETX)  MERATRAEHEEL
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial RERERAERANFESNE - RAREEREZ
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised SEMEE  FBMAB MERS HERBSRMEE
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from B S5 PX AR FA BRI SORMETTHERR - S RIRLE
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument MERTAMNERRRSE  EEERMEETHE
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is SRE  AIREEZEEETBEERBEZNR
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the HERE - BB BERE ERELERA
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following the determination that BREFIREITHER o

the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
surpluses/will continue to be held in the investment revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Council's right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included
in the “investment income" line item in profit or loss.
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DR HMRAAEEER TESFTEER ()

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3.
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 FEESFEEE(E)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRITA (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets TR ERE

ABERE SN B RELAE I RAARTETHE

M% REE (RIERRER R R - & OAERNE

TR BB B R RS TR AN - BHEEE

KSR G RE BB - MR S AR R
R0 -

EEFERANBREERKRESEME T ANERER
MBI LR B MHEL 2 REMERIEXR - AR 12

The Council performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (“ECL") model on
financial assets (including accounts and other receivables and bank deposits) which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the

portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Council's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Council always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts receivable. The ECL on these assets
are assessed collectively based on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to the
Council's internal credit ratings.

For all other instruments, the Council measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Council
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 = =T = =F=A=+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. B BEHRREHEERFTESFTBER (E)
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.3 FEEFECE (E&)
Financial instruments (continued) SRITA (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) THEERE (&)
()  Significant increase in credit risk iy (=ERBRAEEM
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, EHJH*EJ—LFME?Wﬂﬁ%%*ﬁrjimai*ﬂﬂﬁ-r :
the Council compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at AR B BT AR S B HHIRE a0 B Bk
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at SR T ARVIRERBBHERELONRER - it
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Council considers both BRI $)§§%Jf/\fil—f§?§m24b&gi’§
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including # - EEBELRREFTETUERAS TR
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost AIEGHRIEILER -
or effort.
In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether AEE - HEEERBRE S KEZINGEE BT
credit risk has increased significantly: BHL
e anactual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument's external o  EHMIEIR(NE) NI EETRHER
(if available) or internal credit rating; gIBHE R
e significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant « EERARNIINATISERENERS/L - fin
increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor; BEEEEXREBIGN EHANEERLED
BARIELH .
e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions o EW - MBIEEMRIRA IR E
that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its g ?%ﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁfﬁﬁ%)\@ TEEHAEERE
debt obligations; TIRIE T
e anactual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; o  EBARERENERIFEHEARI(
e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or o BEBARE - @ESEMRENER NI
technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the BATNEY  EREBABRTERBKEE
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations. oEEAPNEIN
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3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Council presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Council has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Council assumes that the credit risk on a debt instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Council regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Council considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Council, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Council).
Irrespective of the above, the Council considers that default has occurred when a financial

asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Council has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. HBEHRREHELERFTESFTEER ()
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.3 FEEFECE (E&)
Financial instruments (continued) SRITA (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) THEERE (&)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets iy EZEREZERMEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental il — AN SRS HREMEE 2 BHANRR
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence REEETHEE  AZEREERE TEEM
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following B - EERENZEBEBE TIFRZAHRER
events:
(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower; (@) BITHNBEHEABELREYHERE
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event; (b) BEXRAEHIER  MEDNIBHAEHE
(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the () BEADREEXEGHNZIHFEEARNZE
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that B MRS IR R R AR (MK
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; iER T EIELES) |
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial (d) fERABFIRERESGEITHMMISESR ; 3t
reorganisation; or
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial ) REBARHBHeREEMEAT RN
difficulties. B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Council writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of accounts receivable, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Council's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined by the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Council in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Council expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 = =T = =F=A=+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Council takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status:; and
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each
category continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Council recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts receivable
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23

Strategic Plan
REGERATE

3. MBHRGBRELERETEZIFHR

Operational Review
TERE

Financial Report Appendix
it Fisk

(%)

3.3 FEESFEEE(E)

SRITA (&)

ETHEE (&)
A ENRE (F)

V)

BHEEEANERER (F)

ETESREFEBELAREENZHEMEMIELR
Tyt BoBEB I E B K ATHE M R BB B M 5106
ERERRRREEEE -

AERRERHEM S - ARRI AR E BIA TR -

o EHER UK
o EBAME  RERTE K
o IMEMEEFRFA(IEIA) o

EIEETE MY D BAREITIRES - AR ESAERED
DHERFROERERBREE -

MBWAREEBEENREEARTE  ESH
BEREERERNBRES  RUERT - FIEYK

ATREBS R EENEHERAE

AREBHESR TANKREEREMMERERSE
&?E%EATEI@EPEEM - HERE R SR B R TR 1R
REBETRER



Highlights of the Year Chairman’s Message Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat Strategic Plan Operational Review Financial Report Appendix

FEY ERFE BRERE FER WER KA RSB TR BBmE 23

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 = =T = =F=A=+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. HBEHRREHELERFTESFTEER ()
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.3 FEEFECE (E&)
Financial instruments (continued) SRITA (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

B EEERR I TERR

REGEEERIRSREN A WENER - AARE K
TREENETRARNBABMDER MO REET S
—BEER ARSTERIBREREE -

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the R ERIREHER AT EN SR EER ZEEMNE
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised HESABSWRERRENEN 2 MNEEE RN BT E
_7] o

in profit or loss. Ao

R ERARBN RN 2 ERR A EETER
HEH AR MEEWENED TRARER AT
BEMRBBRENZABETEENDRERST M

Derecognition of financial assets

The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Council has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to

accumulated surpluses. REBEZET -
Financial liabilities and equity 2HEERER TR
Classification as debt or equity SHERE E

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Significant 3. HBEHRREHELERFTESFTEER ()
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.3 FEEFECE (E&)
Financial instruments (continued) SRITA (&)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued) THEERERT A (1F)
Equity instruments #mTA
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the BanTARERANARKSHIKREMEAGERNEETRFT
Council after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Council are FlspEm M a4 - XARBITHEZTAKRCRME
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. FIEHIREEBITRATER
Financial liabilities EHEAE
The Council's financial liabilities, including other payables are subsequently measured at AR5 a8 F 0I5 H A RS FRIA - THBE1R IR ER AR BER
amortised cost using the effective interest method. MEEFT ERRBIER AT E -
Derecognition of financial liabilities THELR BRI HERR
The Council derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Council's obligations AREGNETERR  JTHERR - KRLERSH
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the B  HRLIERANSBRAENREEED N REMNK
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or BREENER AR o
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&sRax st
For the year ended 31 March 2023 H{Z — T —_=F=A=+—HIFE

4. Key Source of Estimation Uncertainty 4, EETTABABEZENEERIR

In the application of the Council's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management KAXBEHBES (\ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%\‘t3}5ﬁﬂt\) F BREEEH T RERAM
are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets %ﬁﬂz B A M AR E EAMN B EREE M 2 E - SRR

and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Key source of estimation uncertainty
The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

o (AR MAERE R R R ENE L R AR SERMEMEE -
m,é%TﬁﬁéﬁiLﬁt%ﬁTH °

EIEE ¥TL¢beu‘|‘&Fﬁﬂﬁ&E’]1ﬁjm ETTIFER L - IIRE

1$E‘|‘E'Jf Rgyss MHHFEE%‘E EACHE *’“HHEE

R eSS uﬂEquEl'Jf T“EMH;%UKXHHFEJFE%;'
f ET/\F\ E'—L“HH&;K;KHHF%%J’/\EEWUO

CEROEEEPSES:VEE -2
LATEE?@*XE’JEK@]“&EA#& HIR At AR =AY A

fhEBHOR - IALEECH T MR A MR EE Y E
j(uﬂﬁﬁlo

Provision of ECL of accounts receivable FEUBR AR TEHRZ B 18 K e

The Council uses the collective basis in estimating ECL on trade receivables. The provision rates KRBT RIS FEREEEL - EHERURNBEERT
are based on internal credit ratings as groupings of various debtors taking into consideration the RAER - B TREHBADE - RNGEBABHATENEX
Council's historical default rates and forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable A REEBBILBTVERARLTIE NI BS 2SI A TR
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates ATEMER - REEmRSER - ENTEATBRRIEHE -
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are considered. W EERIEMEEERNEL -

FEHEERAEESZEEBEIMTE - BRI R E BB
EEBRNEBE D BIERHIE 12 FIFFE19

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The accounts receivables and information
about the ECL are disclosed in notes 12 and 19, respectively.

HKCAAVQ Annual Report 2022/23




Highlights of the Year Chairman’s Message Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat Strategic Plan Operational Review Financial Report Appendix

FEY ERFE BRERE FER WER KA RSB TR BBmE 23

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#§3RRMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

5. Revenue 5. W&
()  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers () REEEFFHEITSINKZEER
Type of services PREER 2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ &1
Accreditation services fees ERBE 64,803,722 60,518,571
Advisory services fees AR E 12,561,842 13,660,937
Consultancy services fees ERRSE 11,601,980 7,311,600
Qualifications and other assessment fees BRENEMFTEE 21,620,660 17,564,984
Qualifications registry fees EEE M E 4,553,897 4,643,219
Total g 115,142,101 103,699,311
Timing of revenue recognition Wi 225 e 2 B 2023 2022
HK$ B ¥ HKS$ &%
At a point in time NIRRT 33,222,640 24,876,584
Overtime TR R ER 81,919,461 78,822,727
Total bl 115,142,101 103,699,311
(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation for contracts with (il PERZHEFHEITSHNRBRBBITIZHENTZER
customers
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining unsatisfied performance obligations as at 31 RZZEZ=F=A=+—H 72EZFAKRETEH
March 2023 are HK$23,420,950 (2022: HK$21,618,010) and the expected timing of recognising M5B ABBME23,4209500( - — —F: B
revenue is within one year. 21,618,0107T) - TEEARERARKR B R —FR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Br iRz MizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

6. Investment Income 6. REWA
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ B
Interest income MBI A 4,135,366 2,288,827
Dividend income from equity instruments M T AR Bz 489,600 291,450
4,624,966 2,580,277

7. Other Income 7. HAUWA
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ &%
Review of non-QF Accreditation FEFEREEHME 2,951 9,060
Miscellaneous income EH bl A 289,876 524,387
292,827 533,447
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE
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8. Surplus for the Year 8. KEFEERLR

Surplus for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting): RNERRBREHR (GTA) -
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ B

Staff costs BT

- Salaries, wages and other benefits -HE  IENREMEF 59,532,809 59,921,625
- Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds - B HIME AR SR 1,468,784 1,521,791
61,001,593 61,443,416
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN 5 195,850 179,950
Depreciation e 1,843,903 1,941,544
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (Note) HEBEEEESA@ANI D () 12 12
Interest income from financial assets at amortised costs R AGT 2 € BE ERN T BUA (1,681,850) (1,919,755)

Note: For both years, the Council leases office premises for its operation. The lease contract is entered into for
a fixed term of 5 years with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. The Council
has elected not to recognise any lease liabilities nor right of use assets as the lease of low-value assets is
insignificant to the financial statements.

9. Taxation 9.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made in these financial statements as the Council is
exempted from taxation pursuant to section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf# 3Rk Iz
For the year ended 31 March 2023 = =T = =F=A=+—HILFE
10. Fixed Assets 10. BIE&EE
Furniture
Leasehold and Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
HEMR HEAMZE EiRE g
HK$ &% HK$ &1 HKS$ &% HK$ B
CosT KR
At 1 April 2021 RZE-——FMA—H 31,083,553 6,842,730 16,080,520 54,006,803
Additions NE - 305,320 972,762 1,278,082
Disposals BE - (4,600) (311,732) (316,332)
At 31 March 2022 RZE-_—_F=A=+—H 31,083,553 7,143,450 16,741,550 54,968,553
Additions p= - - 2,159,660 2,159,660
Disposals BE - (366,220) - (366,220)
At 31 March 2023 RZE-Z=F=A=+—H 31,083,553 6,777,230 18,901,210 56,761,993
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2EHE
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—FIEMA—H 31,083,553 6,788,858 12,828,996 50,701,407
Charge for the year REEHE . 101,193 1,840,351 1,941,544
Eliminated on disposal A B B 88 - (4,600) (311,732 (316,332)
At 31 March 2022 WZE-——F=A=+—H 31,083,553 6,885,451 14,357,615 52,326,619
Charge for the year REEHE - 100,133 1,743,770 1,843,903
Eliminated on disposal A 52 B 58 - (366,220 - (366,220)
At 31 March 2023 R-E-_=F=H=+—H 31,083,553 6,619,364 16,101,385 53,804,302
NET BOOK VALUE AREDFE
At 31 March 2023 R-E-_=F=A=+—H - 157,866 2,799,825 2,957,691
At 31 March 2022 KRB —_F=A=+—H - 257,999 2,383,935 2,641,934
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Br#5sk&RMizE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE
11. Investments 11. ®E
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ B
Debt instruments - financial assets at amortised costs EFETE - RBHEKATE eREE 68,655,027 72,546,767
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI NAREBEFEERSHHAEMEZEKE
BRI EKRE 15,743,700 9,691,800
84,398,727 82,238,567
Analysed as: PRV
Non-current IERED 76,547,747 72,816,546
Current VinE2) 7,850,980 9,422,021
84,398,727 82,238,567
Fair value of financial assets at amortised costs WK A2 EMEENANEER 59,943,968 70,050,914
12. Accounts and Other Receivables 12. FEURERR A E AL EURTR
2023 2022
HK$ &% HKS B
Accounts receivable JEUER X 14,329,342 20,916,674
Other receivables EL b R R 666,648 526,066
Interest receivable FEU T B, 1,563,530 3,029,461
Deposits fora 434,900 414,900
Prepayments FE R 1,507,952 1,414,725
18,502,372 26,301,826

As at 1 April 2021, accounts receivable from contracts with customers amounted to HK$13,419,472.

As at 31 March 2023, included in the Council’s accounts receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$4,759,948 (2022: HK$6,148,973) which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$nil (2022: HK$19,200) has been past due 90 days or
more and is not considered as in default by considering the background of the debtors, subsequent
settlement, historical payment arrangement and credit standing of these accounts receivable.

Details of impairment assessment as at 31 March 2023 are set out in note 19.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt#&sR&R M5
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE
. /= =,
13. Bank Deposits and Cash 13. RITERRRE
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ B #
Deposits with banks HRITEBIF R 128,094,346 64,749,494
Cash at bank and other financial institutions and in hand IR & KR 1T ok E A B A 17 50 13,850,243 34,492,938
Bank deposits and cash in the statement of financial position BISRR AT RRIRI T IF R R IR E 141,944,589 99,242,432

L B AR =B A PA_ERIHEIRTTF K

Less: Bank deposits with maturity of more than three months at

acquisition (117,942,107) (59,746,861)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows HensxkMANREMREEEY 24,002,482 39,495,571

14. Deferred Government Grants 14. IEIEKHT B
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ &%
Balance as at 1 April AU A — B/ 831,669 1,973,459
Recognised as income during the year FAEBERBBA (734,349) (1,141,790)
Balance as at 31 March R=A=+—HBN%EH 97,320 831,669
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities B OREBABE T EENESRE (97,320) (734,349)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities ERBEEETRENERE - 97,320

The grants are for supporting the costs of the Qualify Enhancement Support Scheme projects.
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15. SHNEE
AKBZEHEABIIINT

15. Contract Liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Council's contract liabilities:

2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ B
Accreditation services fees STERGE 13,537,607 12,620,160
Consultancy services fees FER ARG & 733,500 542,500
Qualifications assessment fees BRI EE 4,612,909 3,734,518
Qualifications registry fees BREAfME 4,188,932 4,720,832
23,072,948 21,618,010
As at 1 April 2021, contract liabilities amounted to HK$26,147,957. RIZZEZ—FA—H 6B ESEREE26,147,9577T -
2023 2022
HK$ & HK$ B

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities SEAEE R A ENRFERRKA
balance at the beginning of the year 19,003,827 24,526,044

16. Provision for Staff Gratuities 16. ET MmN & 2%

2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ B
Balance as at 1 April AV A — B &8 6,582,776 6,958,279
Provision made RS 4,828,653 4,679,038
Provision utilised B R%EE (5,403,226) (5,054,541)
Balance as at 31 March R=A=1+—HB#&&% 6,008,203 6,582,776
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities B ORBBEE THEEN S (2,834,713) (4,458,533)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FERBEBEETBIENESEE 3,173,490 2,124,243
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17. Reserves 17.

18.

0

(ii)

(iii)

General reserve

The general reserve has been established since 1 April 2019 in order to meet operational
contingencies and to safeguard the Council's ability to continue as a going concern. It is
transferred to or from the accumulated surplus up to the actual annual operating expenditure
(excluding any future depreciation charges of the related assets under the designated reserve)
as at the year ended of reporting periods (rounded to the nearest million). The general reserve
is available for general use and can be utilised at the discretion of the Council.

Designated reserve

The designated reserve has been established since 1 April 2019 for the future capital
expenditure requirement on leasehold properties. It is transferred to or from the accumulated
surplus plus any surplus in excess of the agreed ceiling of the general reserve.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value

of equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 3.

Capital Risk Management

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements, its primary financial and capital management objectives are to maintain a balance
between annual income and expenditure, so that it has the ability to operate as a going concern and
perform its statutory roles and functions. The Council is primarily financed through the charging
of fees for academic and vocational accreditation services rendered which include validations,
revalidations, institutional reviews, qualifications assessments and advisory/consultancy services.
Any operating surplus shall be carried forward to the following financial year to meet future
expenditure required for the operations of the Council.

The Council's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years. The capital structure of the
Council consists of cash and cash equivalents and accumulated surpluses.
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19. Financial Instruments 19. TR T H (&)
Categories of financial instruments SR T EMEER
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ B
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost HBER AT ENSREE 227,594,036 196,676,300
Equity instruments at FVTOCI ARBEFEEEZSHEA
Hib2mEEmE=T A 15,743,700 9,691,800
243,337,736 206,368,100
Financial liabilities SRIEE
Amortised cost B AR 1,802,873 2,784,221

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Council's major financial instruments include debt instruments classified as financial assets at
amortised cost, accounts and other receivables, bank deposits and cash and other payables. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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19. Financial Instruments (continued) 19. @ TR (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) B RREEEZERECK (E)
Market risk 5 E ke
Currency risk SN
The Council has the foreign currency denominated debt instruments classifies as financial assets HRAR BB AINEA BN D R R HEK AT 2R EEN
at amortised cost, which expose the Council to foreign currency risk. The Council currently does BEBITE - EMELINERR - B2 E B BDZ A INEEHHIK
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange R EBEERER  BEESINERREEE -
exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Council's foreign currency denominated monetary asset at the end of the WEHR - ABUIINEENEEEEREAENT ¢
reporting period are as follows:
Assets BE
2023 2022

HK$ 8% HK$ B
United States dollars ("USD") ETT 72,819,878 62,843,939
Sensitivity analysis BEZ T
The management considers that, as HK$ is pegged to USD, the Council is not subject to significant ERERG  BRNBBEITEN - AR AREETHBEE
foreign currency risk from change in foreign exchange rate of USD against HK$. EEBMEMAERINER
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19. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Council's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Council due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

Accounts receivable arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Council has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures over the
customers to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Council performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on trade receivables collectively. The trade receivables
are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to the Council’s internal credit
ratings. In this regard, the management of the Council consider that the Council's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Council's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of the reporting period, the Council had a certain concentration of credit risk
as 35% and 80% (2022: 34% and 78%) of the total accounts receivable that were due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Other receivables and bank deposits

The credit risks on other receivables are insignificant as the management of the Council periodically
monitors the balances to ensure that the counterparties are viable to settle the debts.

Bank deposits are normally placed with financial institutions which have good credit ratings.
Investments in debt instruments are with counterparties of sound credit ratings. Given their
high credit ratings, management does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.
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19. Financial Instruments (continued) 19. @ TR (&)

IR EE B R RBUCR (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

EERR R ER G (E)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Council only invests in debt ins
at amortised cost mainly comprise
investment grade as per globally u

truments with low credit risk. The Council’'s debt instruments
of bond issued by listed companies that are graded in the top
nderstood definitions and therefore are considered to be low

credit risk investment. The management of the Council therefore considered the credit risks are

insignificant.

The Council's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following categories:

B AT B2 EHTA

ARERENEERBRBEMNES LA - ARIREBIHKANE

ZEBETEFER EMARBEITHESARN
xR E R

BRARHER BT AR

ZEEFLRS
H iR AR EERRRIE

& Bt AREEERAUFEERRALTENX -

ARABEER

BERHEBIEATES -

Internal credit rating Description Accounts receivable Other financial assets
REREE R BTk FE AR HitemEE
Low risk Debtor always settle in full on time or sometimes repays after Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
due dates and with no history of default not credit-impaired
yEN BERARRERE2RES  IBERNIBARER  RBENCE BEFEHARBPEERK - 1218 ANFEEEERX
FERRE
High risk There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired Lifetime ECL -
through information developed internally not credit-impaired
=Rk BRBEARMEBIGHERIAR - EERMREEE REFEHNEHREERRE - BEFEHANEREERX -
EEARRE (ELENEAEN
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - credit-jmpaired Lifetime ECL - credit-jmpaired
EPS RRBRAZEEFEDAE BEFEMNERERERX - BEFEMNEREREX -
FECRE EECHRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off Amount is written off
difficulty and the Council has no realistic prospect of recovery
paski:! RRBRABBARRENIHBAE - FREREHLTARE SR SR
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19. Financial Instruments (continued) 19. @ TR (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) B RREEEZERECK (E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERKEFRET S (E)
Debt instruments at amortised cost (continued) AR ECEFETA (B
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Council's financial assets which are subject to ;ﬁﬁﬁu$%TK?@?EEE{E%?TE%EWEE’Uﬁ%ﬁﬁféﬁ’\]1*%?@ S
ECL assessment: S

Internal credit

Notes rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
12BAARFEREERLS
B & RS BT BEFEHNEREERX IREA%E
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ B
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBERATTENEREE
Accounts receivables 12 Low risk Lifetime ECL (collectiye assessment) 14,329,342 20,916,674
FEUTAR R {lioEEN BAFEPNTEREERL (BET®)
Other receivables and deposits 12 Low risk 12m ECL 2,665,078 3,970,427
H i i e KRB 12 ARFBEAEEIBL
Debt instruments classified as
financial assets at amortised costs 11 Low risk 12m ECL \ 68,655,027 72,546,767
DEBIEHIENATESHEENERTA {liwEEN 2B ARNTEEEERL
Bank deposits 13 Low risk 12m ECL 141,928,723 99,221,942
RITER KR 12 ARTBEEEIBR
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19. Financial Instruments (continued) 19. @ TR (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

B ERERE B FEREE (E)

Liquidity risk MENE & Rk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Council maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily RERABDECRRME - ANRDHERFEE TR SHE - 7
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial MRS IR A EE B S N T BN ISR BEEA R WA ZRE

institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

At the end of the reporting period, the Council's remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities is mainly repayable on demand or within three months from the end of respective reporting
periods. In the opinion of council members, the difference between the carrying amounts of the
financial liabilities and the undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest date on which the Council
can be required to pay is not significant and therefore, no further analysis is presented.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Council determines fair value of various financial
assets.

(i) Fair value of the Council's financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The Council's equity investment is measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair value of this financial asset is determined (in
particular, the valuation technique and input used).

BE nREnRBEeREERBZEX -

RBERR - AREREENR TN EERNERERAR
RIRERF=EAREE - XAEKERR - RBEREEMN
REARKFAEERFTRREAREZEZE/TEX - Bt
BREBE—FNOITES -

TRIANAABENE

HHEREARNNEESEEREENAEE -

() BEEUHEENULABEFENAREREE

REHNERIREEREHRZ AABEE - TRIIH
IEE I EREEN AR ER(CERZEANMGBETE
K ABE) -

Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy and key input
SREE AREER RABEER ETEREERAZE
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ B
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 15,743,700 9,691,800 Level 1 Quoted bid price
in an active market
RARBEFEAEZESH A £— ERTISPREAE

Hip2EmmEz TR

There were no transfers in different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022.
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19. Financial Instruments (continued) 19.
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair
value disclosures are required)

Except as detailed in the following table, the council members consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Operational Review Financial Report Appendix
TS BI TSRS >4
o= =
EHT AR (&)

IR EE B R RBUCR (&)
ERMITANRABETE(E)

(i) HIERFURERENUARBEFENLAREREE (BER
BEAAER)

BRTERAR  AERERREREYBHRERZEREE
MERBEMNREEEEQEERES -

2023 2022
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
FREE NREE AREE nNREE
HK$ &% HK$ &% HK$ B HK$ &%
Debt instruments B LR 68,655,027 59,943,968 72,546,767 70,050,914
20. Related Party Transactions 20. BEE AR S

All transactions related to the provision of accreditation services to organisations in which a member
of the Council, key management personnel and the HKSAR Government may have an interest are
conducted in the normal course of business and in accordance with the Council's fee charging policy
and fee schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance.

Except as disclosed in (iv) and (v) below, all transactions related to the procurement of goods and
services involving organisations in which a member of the Council, key management personnel and
the HKSAR Government may have an interest are conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with the Council's financial obligations and normal procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Council had the following related party transactions:
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20. Related Party Transactions (continued) 20. BBHAF RSB (&)
()  Honorarium to Council members in the capacity of (i) AERENATESFEREN <
2023 2022
HK$ &% HK$ &1
Non-local Council members JEARHAL B 260,000 260,000
Local Council members are not remunerated. RRESG MK E I TR -
(i) Key management personnel remuneration (i) EBERBEAEME
2023 2022
HK$ &% HKS$ %
Salaries and other emoluments FrekEape 8,300,849 7,813,921
Retirement scheme contributions IRPRET B R 54,000 54,000
8,354,849 7,867,921
Key management personnel comprise of the Executive Director, Deputy Executive Director FARERABBIEMS - 2lRnE (2 Meless
(Academic) and Deputy Executive Director (Vocational and Professional Education and Training). (BEETHE) -

(iii) During the year ended 31 March 2023, approximately 24% (2022: 22%) of the Council's total (i) BEZTZ="F=A=+—HILFE  EXRHEBERA
income are derived from services provided to the HKSAR Government, and approximately 12% o H26% (2 = ZF 1 22%) 2K B [RBUT IR ARTS -
(2022: 15%) of it are derived from services provided to other government-related entities. All the #4912% (ZZ == : 15%) 2R 8 M HMBFEREEIR
services are conducted in the normal course of business and in accordance with the Council's HIRTE - ARG EBEEEEE - WERRABH
fee charging policy and fee schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance. BRI K AGBIRTAN ER — B XU ER -
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20. Related Party Transactions (continued) 20. BBHAF RSB (&)

(iv) Effective from 1 September 2011, the Council has entered into a lease with the HKSAR (ivy AZZE——F L A—HiE- ZIX)E_’EE\E;%EAZHRR;TT_IE
Government and rented a vacant school premises in Siu Sai Wan Estate, Chai Wan, Hong Kong MEWZE LEABE 1 TRBUNHERBEEEE/ NFEE
at a charge of $1 per month as its office. B—AEBERREERNAE -

(v)  During the year ended 31 March 2023, the HKSAR Government also provided funding support of (v BEZZE-=F=A=1+—HILFE ALBBAREE
HK$4,700,000 (2022: HK$4,700,000) for the daily maintenance and regular upgrading of the QR. EEMTE AR 2 M A RIE 7 8% 4,700,000 T (=%

4 814,700,000 7T) ©
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dunballlfi
For the year ended 31 March 2023 #\ 2 — T == =+—HILFE
2023 2022
HK$ & HK$ B
BITRA
Salaries e 53,036,836 53,447,706
Allowances and other staff costs SRR E A B TR 7,964,757 7,995,710
61,001,593 61,443,416
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 1T E A
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN & 195,850 179,950
Bank charges RITFEE 11,736 10,706
Cleaning BRE 587,046 581,019
Community relations =R 27,210 5,965
Consultancy fees =l 400,105 912,686
Depreciation e 1,843,903 1,941,544
Foreign exchange loss [E 5,185 28,925 19,789
Incidental expenses HMIEY H 121,350 79,270
Insurance R & 296,875 295,040
Legal advisory fees EEEAE 84,500 565,050
Membership fee @88 97,977 108,104
Overseas visits and conferences BIND T 17,608 901
Periodicals, newspapers and books BT sRAEANER 30 1,340
Photocopying TEE 33,235 30,924
Postage e 47,947 41,416
Printing ENI & 68,000 64,300
Publicity 5BE 675,509 550,187
Recruitment and training HEE K g 160,450 51,090
Rent and rates e Fnz=am 402,888 280,522
Repairs and maintenance BERIREE 824,243 688,342
Securities transaction charges BFHEEEH 13,227 1,457
Security RELE 378,668 389,964
Stationery and consumables X EFEAE S 368,023 542,497
Telephone and facsimile BENEEER 597,196 460,549
Tools and equipment T EREE 4,207,885 3,799,987
Transport and travelling BB 77,952 80,929
Utilities K-EBE 271,217 212,088
Work related research T EAERE AT 80,000 84,650
11,919,555 11,980,266
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ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE ZH 547
For the year ended 31 March 2023 {2 — T == =+—HILFE

2023 2022
HK$ & HK$ &1
DIRECT ACCREDITATION/CONSULTANCY COSTS ERETEBERRA

Accreditation costs FPEEACAR 6,074,997 4,035,417
Consulting costs FARI AR 3,118,276 923,363
Qualifications Register costs N PN 2,795,109 2,892,186
Others Hib 1,148,121 1,219,386
13,136,503 9,070,352

COUNCIL MEETING AND COMMITTEE EXPENSES rREgE;RZEEEIN
Air passages = 173,626 —
Honorarium payments [EANEN 260,000 260,000
Hotel accommodation BIEEEE 35,715 —
Working lunches and dinners NI ER RN AR 52 2,303 6,000
Subsistence allowance TRHe 2,600 —
Transport and miscellaneous expenses RBEFHEE 68,803 18,452
543,047 284,452
TOTAL EXPENDITURE AR 86,600,698 82,778,486
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(@) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on accreditation policies, standards and
procedures relevant to the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualification’s (HKCAAVQ) statutory role as the Accreditation Authority under the Qualifications
Framework and those relevant to non-QF related accreditation/quality assurance services.

(b)  To consider and make recommendations to the Council on policies and procedures for maintaining
the Qualifications Register (QR) in fulfilment of HKCAAVQ's statutory role as the QR Authority.

(c) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on policies, criteria and procedures for
undertaking assessments in regard to:

- Non-local courses

- Continuing Education Fund (CEF) reimbursable courses
- Continuing Professional Development (CPD) courses

- Individual qualifications

- Any other relevant activities

(d) To consider and advise the Council on any other matters concerning or affecting HKCAAVQ's
accreditation, assessment and consulting services.

(e)  To make recommendations to the Council on such matters within QAC’s remit as they arise
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Highlights of the Year

Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat
BBRERE FER WER

Chairman’s Message

ES 0

FEIT

To consider and recommend, for the Council's approval, the annual budget of the Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ), including any subsequent
adjustments thereof.

To consider the medium and long-term financial plans of HKCAAVQ.

To keep under review the financial position of HKCAAVQ, including its return on investment and fee
charging policy, and make recommendations to the Council as appropriate.

To receive, consider and recommend for the Council's approval the audited financial statements.

To recommend, for the Council's approval, the appointment of Auditors.

To monitor available cash balances and make recommendations concerning the liquidation of
investments to ensure that an appropriate level of cash reserves is maintained.

To periodically review internal controls of HKCAAVQ as they relate to financial and accounting
matters.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters within FC's remit as they arise.
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Highlights of the Year

Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat
BBRERE FER WER

Chairman’s Message

ES 0

FEIT

To keep under review the staffing structure of the Secretariat.

To monitor human resources policies and practices of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ) and to recommend changes when necessary,
paying particular attention to staff development and training, the remuneration package and matters
of staff welfare.

To consider adjustments to the staff salary based on the outcomes of the annual performance
appraisal and development review.

To keep under review the administrative matters and efficiency of the Secretariat.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters within PAC’s remit as they arise.

To provide strategic advice to the Council on matters concerning the Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ)'s business development including
new areas of business and consulting services.

On delegated authority from the Council [section 8(2) of the HKCAAVQ Ordinance (Cap.1150)], the
BDC is to consider and approve consulting project proposals for projects conducted outside Hong
Kong that require the Secretary for Education’s prior approval. These project proposals will take into
consideration HKCAAVQ's expertise and make reference to the consulting strategy.
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Highlights of the Year Chairman’s Message Executive Director’s Report The Council The Secretariat Strategic Plan

FEHF FEFE wEERE RTER &R R RS

(@) Toassist the Council in carrying out the oversight in risk management including but not limited to the (a)
following:

()  To oversee the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management system carried
out by the management on an on-going basis; and

(i) To receive and comment on the risk management reports including the risk register on an on-
going basis.

(b)  To make recommendations to the Council on such matters within RMC's remit as they arise. (b)
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